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Union Bank was ranked #62 in U.S. Banker's annual survey 
ofthe best performing community banks in the nation. 



Selected Financial Data 

At or For The Years Ended December 31 

Balance Sheet Data 

Total assets 

Investment securities available-for-sale 

Loans, net of unearned Income 

Allowance for loan losses 

Deposits 

Borrowed funds 

Stockholders' equity (1) 

Income Statement Data 

Total interest income 

Total interest expense 

Net interest and dividend income 

Provision for loan losses 

Noninterest income 

Noninterest expenses 

Income before provision for income 

taxes 

Provision for income taxes 

Net income 

2009 

$ 447,522 

24,649 

358,167 

(3,493) 

368,827 

30,993 

41,180 

$ 23,216 

(5,294) 

17,922 

(400) 

5,521 

(16,397) 

6,646 

(1,420) 

$ 5,226 

2008 2007 2006 

Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 

S 440,104 

27,834 

353,310 

(3,556) 

364,370 

27,416 

39,150 

$ 24,721 

(7,177) 

17,544 

(335) 

4,329 

(15,412) 

6,126 

(1,020) 

$ 5,106 

S 393,264 

33,822 

318,194 

(3,378) 

323,961 

20,328 

42,074 

$ 26,273 

(8,228) 

18,045 

(265) 

4,249 

(14,409) 

7,620 

(1,965) 

$ 5,655 

$ 381,193 

23,683 

317,452 

(3,338) 

319,822 

14,596 

41,923 

$ 25,197 

(6,821) 

18,376 

(180) 

4,058 

(13,814) 

8,440 

(2,185) 

$ 6,255 

2005 

$ 374,710 

32,408 

307,071 

(3,071) 

313,299 

16,256 

41,603 

$ 22,249 

(4,499) 

17,750 

(60) 

3,725 

(12,718) 

8,697 

(2,460) 

$ 6,237 

Per Common Share Data 

Net income (2) 

Cash dividends paid 

Bookvalue (1) 

$1.17 

1.00 

9.23 

$1.14 

1.12 

8.75 

$1.25 

1.12 

9.34 

$1.38 

1.06 

9.25 

$1.37 

1.38 

9.16 

Weighted average numbero f shares 

outstanding 

Number of shares outstanding 

4,466,760 4,488,888 4,521,380 4,539,641 4,554,055 
4,461,208 4,474,598 4,502,969 4,531,977 4,542,663 

(1) Stockholders' equity includes unrealized gains or losses, net of applicable income taxes, on investment securities clas
sified as "available-for-sale" and 2009, 2008, 2007 and 2006 includes the unfunded liability for pension benefits, net 
of taxes for the defined benefit pension plan. 

(2) Computed using the weighted average number ofshares outstanding for the period. 
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Letter to Shareholders 

Dear Shareholder, March 31, 2010 

The past two years have been challenging for almost all industries, including banking. During 2009 one 
hundred and forty banks failed in the United States. Though not a record, these failures clearly indicate 
we are in the midst of a recession. If there is a fortunate side to all this, it is banks in the Northeast, 
and particularly in Maine, New Hampshire and Vermont, have fared better than those in the rest of the 
nation. 

Many "stimulus" programs have been made available to the financial industry by the US Treasury. Thus 
far your Company is participating in only one: the additional deposit insurance coverage for non-interest 
bearing transaction accounts. We do not believe we have the need for any ofthe other programs offered, 
such as TARP and CPP. 

For those of us in the banking industry, we are experiencing many new regulations, interpretations and 
proposed legislation to "fix" the causes of our economic problems. Many of us community bankers 
question the need for new legislation as community banks did not create these problems but will become 
a big part of the solution by virtue of our supporting the growth of the local economies we serve. 

The cost of regulatory compliance increases every year, not only in FDIC insurance, but in staffing, training 
and monitoring for compliance of these new regulations. These costs become part of fixed overhead as 
regulatory noncompliance is not an option for any bank. 

For 2009 net income rose 2.4% and, in light ofthe economic and interest rate environment, we believe 
this performance to be acceptable, especially due to increases in some expenses, such as: FDIC insurance 
$597,000, Federal income taxes $400,000, Pension Plan $496,000 and secondary market delivery fees 
of $210,000. While these increases were substantial, we reduced salary, occupancy, equipment and 
professional fee expenses a combined $551,000 to help mitigate the impact on earnings. 

There is however a brighter side in all this turmoil. Residential loan originations exceeded $76,000,000 
and new commercial loan growth was strong in 2009. The unemployment rates in Vermont and New 
Hampshire are well below the national average and we are seeing more activity in the small business 
sector as we move into spring. 

In addition to the audited financial statements and footnotes, this year's annual report highlights our 
growth and performance over the years. In this current environment we believe focusing on our peer 
group performance is important to our shareholders. Of the approximately 1,200 banks in Union Bank's 
peer group, as defined by the FDIC, our return on average assets was in the 85th percentile at 1.26% and 
return on average equity in the 87th percentile at 13.79% for the year. 

2010 is shaping up as another interesting year for the industry. We believe there is an opportunity for 
additional growth as the economy improves and we go about our business of serving our customers and 
community. We wish to thank our shareholders, customers and staff for their support and dedication. 

Sincerely, 

Richard C. Sargent 
Ctiairman 

Kenneth D. Gibbons 
President & CEO 
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Directors 

Steven J. Bourgeois, Franklin G. Hovey II, Robert P. Rollins, John H. Steel, Richard C. Sargent (Chairman), 
Cynthia D. Borck, Kenneth D. Gibbons, Schuyler W. Sweet, Richard C. IVIarron 

Union Bankshares Headquarters Main Street, Morrisville, Vermont 
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Shareholder Assistance & Investor Information 

If you need assistance with a change in registration of certificates, combining your certificates into 
one, reporting lost certificates, non-receipt or loss of dividend checks, assistance regarding direct 
deposit of dividends, information about the Company, or to receive copies offinancial reports, please 
contact JoAnn Tallman, Assistant Secretary at (802) 888-6600 or contact our Transfer Agent at the 
address and phone number listed below: 

Registrar & Transfer Company 
Attn: Stock Transfer Department 
10 Commerce Drive 
Cranford NJ 07016 

Phone: 800.368.5948 
Fax: 908.497.2318 
E-mail: info@rtco.com 

NASDAQ Stock Market 
Ticker Symbol: UNB 
Corporate Name: Union Bankshares, Inc. 

Union Bankshares, Inc., operates as a one bank holding company for Union Bank, which provides 
commercial, municipal, trust, and retail banking services in northern Vermont and northwestern 
New Hampshire. As of December 31, 2009, the company operated 13 community banking locations 
in Lamoille, Caledonia, and Franklin counties of Vermont; and one in the town of Littleton, (Grafton 
County) New Hampshire; and 29 ATMs throughout northern Vermont and New Hampshire. Union 
Bank was founded in 1891 in Morrisville, Vermont, where the Bank's corporate headquarters is 
located. 

Union Bank promotes personal service and banking expertise within the communities it serves, 
with a focus on small to middle-market businesses, local municipalities, non-profits, retail and 
trust customers. To leverage its local expertise. Union Bankshares continues to enhance its niche 
capabilities and focuses on expanding to additional neighboring communities. 

Union Bankshares, through Union Bank, is committed to the communities it serves, and encourages 
employee participation in community events and charitable services. The company views small 
businesses as foundations for thriving local economies; these businesses provide jobs, attract other 
businesses and create wealth. Currently, Union Bank employs 165 people, many of whom are leaders 
in community organizations throughout the bank's service area. 

Union Bankshares' growing asset base of over $445 million provides the financial strength to 
successfully serve its constituents 
The Company reported a Return on Average Equity of 12.3% or greater and a Return on Average 
Assets of 1.21% or greater for each of the last five years 
Union Bank has scored an "Outstanding" rating on ALL its CRA (Community Reinvestment Act) 
examinations since 1995 
The U.S. Small Business Administration has consistently ranked Union Bank as one ofthe most 
"Small Business-Friendly Banks in Vermont" 
Union Bank has been an SBA "Preferred Lender" since 1987 
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About Union Bankshares, Inc. 

1999 was the first year Union Bankshares, Inc. (UNB) issued an annual report that was more than a simple 
copy ofthe company's audited financial statements. We had just acquired Citizens Savings Bank and Trust 
Company, and formed a two bank holding company. (The two banks merged in 2003.) At the time we 
thought it would be appropriate to generate an annual report that would inform our shareholders about 
their company. 

m^Km^i 

Overthe last several years our annual reports have featured valued employees, satisfied customers, our 
community activities and similar items that hopefully have given you, our owners a sense of who we are. 
We have not, however, attempted to directly articulate why we continue to be a sound investment and 
why we continue to be deserving of your trust. Our 2009 report seeks to provide you with a sense of who 
we are; our values, our performance, our goals, and our vision. 

Who we are 

Union Bankshares, Inc. (UNB) is a one-bank holding company whose sole subsidiary is Union Bank. The 
holding company and the bank share a headquarters located in Morrisville, Vermont. Our primary market 
area consists of (West to East) the Vermont Counties of Franklin, Lamoille, and Caledonia, as well as 
Grafton County in New Hampshire. We also have customers located in Chittenden, Washington, Orleans, 
Essex, and Orange Counties in Vermont, as well as in Coos County in New Hampshire. 

Union Bank — geographical area of Vermont and New Hampshire 
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Who We Are 

Union Bank has 165 employees staffing fourteen locations throughout Northern Vermont and Northern 
New Hampshire. Our management and staff live and work in the communities we serve. Two thirds of 
our employees have worked at the bank for five years or more, and 23% have been with us 15 years 
or more. This level of continuity provides the Bank with an experienced, skilled work force with a high 
level of familiarity and recognition within the community; a notable competitive advantage, especially 
in today's economic environment. Our employees are highly engaged citizens, and are involved in over 
120 local charities and non-profit agencies that provide services to those in our community. 

One of our guiding philosophies is hiring local people when possible. When we enter new markets 
we try to find local individuals that know and understand their communities. Our financial strength 
and reputation allow us to attract skilled bankers known to local residents and business owners. In 
addition, our Advisory Board members are local leaders and our corporate Board of Directors features 
business people from each ofthe regions in which we operate. 
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Our Values 

Values 
We are proud to be community bankers. We take our role in the economic vitality of our communities 
seriously and do our best to be a positive leading force for the betterment of the local economy. We 
believe the best way we can be a positive force is to consistently meet the legitimate credit needs of 
our community through good times, and through bad times. Essentially, by simply doing our jobs well 
we can help people buy homes and help businesses create jobs. Evidence of our responsiveness to 
the credit needs of our community is the "Outstanding" designation we have received from the FDIC 
regarding our compliance with the Community Reinvestment Act in our last 15 years of CRA exams. 
We are well aware that in order to provide credit through all economic cycles we must be prudent 
underwriters of credit, and this means we must say no to some credit requests. This is part of risk 
management; a skill some in the financial services industry unfortunately neglected along the way. We 
remain vigilant with regards to credit risk, and the other risks inherent to operating a bank. 

We value our employees. Simply put, community banking is a relationship business. Personal 
relationships are critical to our success. Therefore, we need seasoned, attentive staff to serve the 
needs of our customers. We take pride in the fact that our employees can have a career at the Bank, 
not just a job. We encourage our employees to pursue banking-related education to enable them to 
be better bankers, and more educated citizens. We feel that this is an important component of our 
corporate responsibility. 

We take a long term view of your Company. While there are hundreds of day to day decisions that 
must be made when operating a bank, our strategic decisions are influenced by what is best for our 
shareholders over the long term. We are willing to make investments without immediate returns if 
we believe that over the long term the financial results will provide a good return for our owners. We 
wish to grow the Company, but not at the sacrifice of long term profitability. An example of how our 
long term view of the Company informs our strategic decision making is the sale of the majority of the 
$66 million in qualified fixed rate home loans the Bank originated in 2009. While those loans represent 
a reasonable current yield, they are long term fixed rate instruments and holding them could put our 
future overall returns at risk in a rising interest rate environment. We sell these loans with servicing 
retained. This means we continue to have a direct relationship with our borrowers while obtaining 
an immediate source of fee income from the sale of the loans, as well as an ongoing revenue stream 
for servicing the loans. We view our decision not to hold these loans as win-win for the Bank and our 
customers. 

We believe in being efficient and fiscally conservative. We try to work smart and to eliminate extraneous 
procedures from our operations. We invest in our facilities as necessary, but not in an extravagant 
manner. We take pride in being able to build our branches at a lower cost than most banks. We do not 
think that excessively tying up capital in "bricks and mortar" is a sound way to enhance shareholder 
value. 

St. Albans Office Littleton Office 
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Time Tested 

An important part of our mission is to provide a growing financial return to our shareholders over 
time. We acknowledge that in the last two years the economic and regulatory environment has made 
meeting this goal difficult. We continue to work and make decisions based on what we think are the 
most responsible ways to generate a strong return over a long investment horizon. The following 
graph indicates that over the long term, our strategy is working. 

Dividend History of a Share Purchased in 1979 
(adjusted for stock dividends) 

$40.00 

$30.00 

$20.00 

$10.00 

$0.00 

// you purchased 10 shares of Union Bank stock on 
December 1, 1979 at $10 per share, or $100, due to 
the four stock splits since that date and the change 
in the market value of a share of our stock, those 10 
shares of stock would be worth $6,102 on December 
31, 2009. In addition, you would have received $5,346 
in cash dividends over that 30 year period, or a 378.3% 
annualized return on your initial $100 investment. 

1979 1984 1989 1994 1999 2004 2009 

Our Largest Asset is Our Loan Portfolio 

We think of ourselves as a lending bank. We believe that we are able to earn superior returns from 
our loan portfolio compared to investments in government or corporate debt, even after taking into 
account the cost of originating loans and the cost of credit losses. Generating a profitable loan portfolio 
requires skilled staff to attract prospects, underwrite, and service loans. In addition, management 
must ensure that proper pricing and adherence to proper underwriting standards is maintained. We 
have experienced front line lending staff and senior managers who generate, service, and manage the 
Bank's loan portfolio. 

Performance 

Thereare many measuresof performance when evaluating a community bank. To measure our results 
we compare our performance to banks of a similar size and geographic market area. We compare our 
overall return to published indexes, and also compare our deposit market share to other banks serving 
our markets. Finally, and most difficult for Union Bank, we compare our performance to our own past 
performance. The following graphs are meant to provide the reader with meaningful measures of our 
financial performance. 
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Key Financial Indicators 

Performance Indicators Compared to Local Peers 
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County: 
CALEDONIA, FRANKLIN, LAMOILLE 

Institution Name 

Union Bank 
TD Bank National Association 
Passumpsic Savings Bank 
Peoples Trust Company of St. Albans 
IVIerchants Bank 
Peoples United Bank 
Community National Bank 
RBS Citizens National Association 
KeyBank National Association 

Number of Institutions in the Market: 

Deposit Market Share Analysis 
As 

State: 
Vermont 

State 
(Hdqrtrs) 

VT 
DE 
VT 
VT 
VT 
CT 
VT 
Rl 
OH 

9 

of June 30, 2009 

State or No .of 
Federal Offices 
Charter 

State 
Federal 
State 
State 
State 

Federal 
Federal 
Federal 
Federal 

TOTALS 

14 
8 
5 
5 
5 
4 
6 
1 
1 

42 

June 30, 2009 source: FDIC.GOV 

nside of IVIarket 
Deposits 

(000) 

$ 344,300 
257,234 
230,493 
181,686 
125,158 
113,251 
104,544 
53,925 
46,663 

,<R 1 4.57,?.54 

Market 
Share 

23.63% 
17.65% 
15.82% 
12.47% 
8.59% 
7.77% 
7.17% 
3.70% 
3.20% 

100.00%, 

Outside of Market 
No. of 

Offices 

1 (NH) 
1,036 

6 
1 

29 
289 

8 
1,119 
1,004 

3 493 

Deposits 
(000) 

$5,462 
78,311,295 

206,720 
4,083 

891,174 
14,934,018 

279,685 
77,927,762 
67,383,359 

S 239.943.558 

This chart, f r om the most recent FDIC data, shows the amount of deposits and percentage o f deposit market 

share in Franklin, Lamoille and Caledonia counties of Vermont. 
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Key Financial Indicators 

Performance Indicators Compared to National Peers 
All U.S. Banks with $300M-$1B in Assets 

(Approximately 1198 banks are in the Peer Group—source FDIC.gov) 
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operations of Union Bank and Citizens Savings Bank and Trust Company pre-merger 

Total Return Performance Compared to National Indices 
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This chart shows the financial performance of UNB compared to the NASDAQ Composite Index, a broad based index 
that measures all NASDAQ domestic and international based common stocks listed on The NASDAQ Stock Market. 
SNL Bank refers to an average of the financial performance of banks with assets between $250M and $500M. 
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Our Goals & Vision 

2010 and Beyond 
We have demonstrated over a longtime horizon that Union Bankshares has performed well compared 
to its peers in the banking industry. While we are satisfied by this performance, we are not content 
to rest on past accomplishments. Daily we work to improve our bank and its performance: in human 
resource management, prudent investment in facilities and infrastructure, and the thoughtful pursuit 
of strategic growth initiatives. 

We are aware of changes in expectations from our existing and potential customers. We are working 
to enhance our traditional strong "customer service" culture by encouraging and training our staff 
to use a proactive "consultative sales" technique. We will continue to emphasize superior customer 
service, and take it a step further by assisting and educating customers about additional bank products 
and services that can be both relevant and beneficial. Our goal is to gently expand existing customer 
relationships while avoiding "hard sell" tactics often used by larger, impersonal financial institutions. 
We are allocating significant resources to provide training in consultative sales methods to our front
line employees. At the same time, we continue our business development programs in order to 
attract new, profitable customer relationships. Specific target markets include Franklin County in 
Vermont and the greater Uttleton region in New Hampshire. We believe that we can increase our 
market share considerably in both of these markets, as well as maintain a high level presence in our 
other market areas. 

The Bank continues to make substantial investments in technology. We constantly research new 
technologies that can provide value to our customers and our daily operations. In 2010, we will 
complete the expansion of our current computer systems with a new state of the art data center. In 
addition, we are building a new mirrored site in a different county. Both locations have emergency 
power generators with 24 hours of on-site fuel, battery backup systems, fire suppression systems, and 
redundant fiber networks connecting the two sites. Both sites'computersystems replicate information 
to the alternate site continuously. With this infrastructure in place, we will easily accommodate the 
Bank's future growth. Once these new data centers are completed, we will be migrating to a new loan 
origination program and document imaging system. These new software installations will assist our 
compliance with ever changing regulations and will substantially increase our back office production 
efficiencies by eliminating the need to re-enter information between different systems. The new loan 
software will pave the way toward the availability of online loan applications, further improving our 
levels of access and service to our customers. 

Union Bankshares, Inc., remains positioned for growth. Our sound capital base and sound earnings 
will enable us to take advantage of opportunities as they become available. We continually research 
and review strategic actions designed to be accretive to earnings over the long term. We believe 
the best way for us to serve our shareholders, our employees, and our community is to remain 
independent and to continue to grow. 

Ifyou are a UNBshareholder, thank you for your belief in us. It is our ongoing ambition to continue to 
earn it. If you are interested in becoming one of our shareholders, or one of our valued customers— 
or both—we encourage you to contact us at your first convenience. 
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Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Report 

B E R R Y . D U N N . M C N E I L & PARKER 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC A C C O U N T A N T S 
M A N A G E M E N T CONSULTANTS 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Union Bankshares, Inc. and Subsidiary 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Union Bankshares, Inc. and Sub
sidiary (the Company) as of December 31, 2009, and the related consolidated statements of income, 
changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements 
are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audit. The financial statements of Union Bankshares, Inc. 
and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2008, were audited by other auditors whose report dated March 
27, 2009, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with standards ofthe Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rea
sonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The 
Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control 
over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting 
as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe Company's internal control over finan
cial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reason
able basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the 2009 consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Union Bankshares, Inc. and Subsidiary as 
of December 31, 2009, and the consolidated results of their operations and their consolidated cash 
flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Portland, Maine 
March 29, 2010 
Vermont Registration No. 92-0000278 
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Union Bankshares, Inc. and Subsidiary 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 

December 31, 2009 and 2008 

2009 2008 
ASSETS 

Cash and due from banks 

Federal funds sold and overnight deposits 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Interest bearing deposits in banks 
Investment securities available-for-sale 
Loans held forsale 

Loans 
Allowance for loan losses 
Net deferred loan costs (fees) 

Net loans 

Accrued interest receivable 
Premises and equipment, net 
Prepaid FDIC insurance assessment 
Other assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
Deposits 

Noninterest bearing 
Interest bearing 

Total deposits 
Borrowed funds 
Liability for defined benefit pension plan 
Accrued interest and other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 8, 14, 15, 16, 17 and 20) 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Common stock, $2.00 par value; 7,500,000 shares 
authorized; 4,921,786 shares issued at 
December 31, 2009 and 2008 

Additional-paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Treasury stock at cost; 460,578 and 447,188 shares at 

December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Total stockholders' equity 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 

$ 4,941,612 

17,190,525 

22,132,137 

22,974,800 
24,648,589 

9,262,352 

348,827,116 
(3,492,783) 

77,508 

345,411,841 

1,634,095 
7,613,319 
1,803,863 

12,041,100 

$447,522,096 

$ 60,128,845 
308,698,292 

368,827,137 
30,992,604 

3,048,318 
3,474,427 

406,342,486 

9,843,572 
219,331 

36,494,110 

(3,724,326) 
(1,653,077) 

41,179,610 

$ 4,792,398 

21,537,310 

26,329,708 

14,789,173 
27,834,384 

3,178,402 

350,237,949 
(3,556,205) 

(106,475) 
346,575,269 

1,938,563 
7,460,693 

11,997,450 

$440,103,642 

$ 61,314,659 
303,055,069 

364,369,728 
27,416,262 

5,231,458 
3,936,111 

400,953,559 

9,843,572 
207,683 

35,868,916 

(3,500,504) 
(3,269,584) 

39,150,083 

$447,522,096 $440,103,642 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Union Bankshares, Inc. and Subsidiary 
Consolidated Statements of Income 

Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 

2009 2008 

Interest income 
Interest and fees on loans 
Interest on debt securities: 

Taxable 
Tax exempt 

Dividends 
Interest on federal funds sold and overnight deposits 
Interest on interest bearing deposits in banks 

Total interest income 
Interest expense 

Interest on deposits 
Interest on short-term borrowed funds 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total interest expense 
Net interest income 

Provision for loan losses 
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 

Noninterest income 
Trust income 
Service fees 
Net gains on sales of investment securities available-for-sale 
Write-down of impaired investment securities available-for-sale 
Net gains on sales of loans held for sale 
Income from Company owned life insurance 
Other income 

Total noninterest income 
Noninterest expenses 

Salaries and wages 
Pension and other employee benefits 
Occupancy expense, net 
Equipment expense 
Vermont franchise tax 
FDIC insurance assessment 
Expenses of other real estate owned, net 
Equity in losses of limited partnerships 
Other expenses 

Total noninterest expenses 
Income before provision for income taxes 
Provision for income taxes 

Net income 

Earnings per common share 
Dividends per common share 

$21,558,734 

842,906 

302,560 

3,162 

24,951 

484,274 
23,216,587 

4,117,568 

693 
1,175,949 

5,294,210 

17,922,377 

400,000 

17,522,377 

379,042 

3,600,094 

257,546 
— 

969,541 

77,426 

237,658 
5,521,307 

6,097,064 

2,923,803 

956,966 

1,109,625 

396,549 

684,085 

280,954 

425,970 

3,522,156 

16,397,173 

6,646,511 

1,419,943 

$ 5,226,568 

$ 1.17 

$ 1.00 

$22,646,111 

1,082,856 

319,563 

64,888 

126,114 

481,245 

24,720,777 

6,002,747 

46,491 

1,127,748 

7,176,986 

17,543,791 

335,000 

17,208,791 

377,789 

3,528,156 

16,225 

(511,598) 

419,406 

362,861 

136,074 

4,328,913 

6,433,010 

2,308,925 

974,078 

1,200,322 

369,521 
87,027 

290,865 

389,442 

3,358,849 

15,412,039 

6,125,665 

1,019,545 

$ 5,106,120 

$ 1.14 
$ 1.12 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Union Bankshares, Inc. and Subsidiary 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 

Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 

Balances, December 31, 2007 

Comprehensive income: 
Net income 

Other comprehensive loss, 
net of tax: 

Change in net unrealized 
loss on investment securities 
available-for-sale, net of 
reclassification adjustment 
and tax effects 

Change in net unrealized 
loss on unfunded defined 
benefit plan liability, net of 
reclassification adjustment 
and tax effects 

Total other comprehensive loss 

Total comprehensive income 

Cash dividends declared 
stock based compensation expense 
Purchase of treasury stock 

Balances, December 31, 2008 

Comprehensive income: 
Net income 

Other comprehensive income, 
netoftax: 

Change in net unrealized 
loss on investment securities 
available-for-sale, net of 
reclassification adjustment 
and tax effects 

Change in net unrealized 
loss on unfunded defined 
benefit plan liability, net of 
reclassification adjustment 
and tax effects 

Total other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income 

Cash dividends declared 
Stock based compensation expense 
Purchase of treasury stock 

Balances, December 31, 2009 

Common Stock 

shares, net 
of treasury Amount 

4,502,969 $9,843,572 

Additional 

Paid-in 

capital 

$202,401 

Retained 
earnings 

$35,791,516 

5,106,120 

Treasury 
stock 

$(2,939,429) 

Accumulated 
other 

comprehensive 
loss 

$ (824,022) 

Total 

stockholders' 
equity 

$ 42,074,038 

5,106,120 

(88,062) 

(2,445,562) 

(5,028,720) 
5,282 

(28,371) (561,075) 

5,226,568 

447,285 

(4,601,374) 

11,648 
(13,390) (223,822) 

(88,062) 

- (2,357,500) (2,357,500) 

2,660,558 

(5,028,720) 
5,282 

(561,075) 

4,474,598 9,843,572 207,683 35,868,916 (3,500,504) (3,269,584) 39,150,083 

5,226,568 

447,285 

1,169,222 

1,616,507 

— 
— 
— 

1,169,222 

6,843,075 

(4,601,374) 

11,648 
(223,822) 

4,461,208 $9,843,572 $219,331 $36,494,110 $(3,724,326) $(1,653,077) $41,179,610 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Union Bankshares, Inc. and Subsidiary 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Provision for loan losses 
Deferred income tax (benefit) provision 
Net amortization of Investment securities available-for-sale 
Net gains on sales of investment securities available-for-sale 
Equity in losses of limited partnerships 
Stock based compensation expense 
Write-down of impaired investment securities available-for-sale 
Net gains on sales of loans held for sale 
Net losses on disposals of premises and equipment 
Net losses on sales of other real estate owned 
Write-down of other real estate owned 
Net decrease in unearned loan fees 
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 
Origination of loans held for sale 
Decrease in accrued interest receivable 
Prepaid FDIC insurance assessment 
(Increase) decrease in other assets 
Contribution to defined benefit pension plan 
Increase in other liabilities 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Interest bearing deposits in banks 
Proceeds from maturities and redemptions 
Purchases 

Investment securities available-for-sale 
Proceeds from sales 
Proceeds from maturities, calls and pay downs 
Purchases 

Net purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 
Net decrease (increase) in loans 
Investments in limited partnerships 
Purchase of premises and equipment 
Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned 
Proceeds from sales of repossessed property 

Net cash used in investing activities 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Advances of long-term debt 
Repayment of long-term debt 

Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings outstanding 
Net (decrease) increase in noninterest bearing deposits 
Net increase in interest bearing deposits 
Purchase of treasury stock 
Dividends paid 

Net cash provided by financing activities 
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 
Beginning of year 
End of year 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Interest paid 

Income taxes paid 

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Other real estate acquired in settlement of loans 

Other assets acquired in settlement of loans 

Loans originated to finance the sale of other real estate owned 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

2009 2008 

$ 5,226,568 

713,659 
400,000 
(11,415) 
6,359 

(257,546) 
425,970 
11,648 

— 
(969,541) 
31,041 
9,928 

93,075 
(183,983) 

61,400,565 
(66,514,974) 

304,468 
(1,803,863) 
(1,063,133) 
(2,106,963) 
1,427,306 

(2,860,831) 

17,170,000 
(25,355,627) 

4,499,013 
6,091,699 
(6,476,025) 

— 
365,762 
(193,620) 
(897,326) 
228,848 
21,981 

(4,545,295) 

(1,863,658) 
5,440,000 
(1,185,814) 
5,643,223 
(223,822) 

(4,601,374) 

3,208,555 

(4,197,571) 

26,329,708 

$22,132,137 

$ 5,526,446 

$ 1,245,000 

$ 1,093,229 

$ 21,500 

$ 533,157 

$ 5,106,120 

784,375 
335,000 
232,643 

8,216 
(16,225) 
389,442 

5,282 
511,598 
(419,406) 
49,997 
24,177 

104,645 
(5,085) 

23,660,285 
(18,707,951) 

125,269 

— 
595,316 
(182,000) 
107,814 

12,709,512 

21,943,000 
(24,864,641) 

1,803,129 
7,526,428 
(3,979,050) 
(525,900) 

(41,515,045) 
(1,231,101) 
(1,832,874) 

850,934 
109,167 

(41,715,953) 

12,000,000 
(911,409) 

(4,000,000) 
5,159,453 

35,249,291 
(561,075) 

(5,028,720) 

41,907,540 

12,901,099 

13,428,609 

$26,329,708 

$ 7,500,973 

$ 1,229,000 

$ 1,687,547 

$ 315,782 

$ 288,825 
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Union Bankshares, Inc. and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting and reporting policies of Union Bankshares, Inc. and Subsidiary (the "Company") are in conformity with 
U. S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") and general practices within the banking industry. The following is 
a description ofthe more significant policies. 

Basis of presentation and consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Union Bankshares, Inc., and its wholly owned subsidiary. 
Union Bank ("Union") headquartered in IVlorrisville, Vermont. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have 
been eliminated. The Company utilizes the accrual method of accounting for financial reporting purposes. 

Periods presented 

The Company meets the qualification requirements under Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") rules for smaller 
reporting companies and, pursuant to such rules, has elected to present audited statements of income, cash flows and 
changes in stockholders' equity for each of the most recent two fiscal years. 

Nature of operations 

The Company provides a variety offinancial services to individuals, municipalities, commercial and nonprofit customers 
through its branches, ATMs, telebanking, and internet banking systems in northern Vermont and northwestern New 
Hampshire. This market area encompasses primarily retail consumers, small businesses, municipalities, agricultural 
producers, and the tourism industry. The Company's primary deposit products are checking, savings, money market 
accounts, certificates of deposit, and individual retirement accounts and its primary lending products are commercial, real 
estate, municipal, and consumer loans. 

Concentration of risk 

The Company's operations are affected by various risk factors, including interest rate risk, credit risk, and risk from 
geographic concentration of its deposit taking and lending activifies. Management attempts to manage interest rate risk 
through various asset/liability management techniques designed to match maturities/repricing of assets and liabilities. Loan 
policies and administrafion are designed to provide assurance that loans will only be granted to credit-worthy borrowers, 
although credit losses are expected to occur because of subjecfive factors and factors beyond the control of the Company. 
Although nafional economic condifions have been volafile during the last fifteen months, local economic condifions have 
been somewhat more stable. The Company has a diversified loan portfolio with a substanfial porfion of the Company's 
loans secured by real estate and/or parfially guaranteed by a U. S. Government agency. Most of its lending acfivifies are 
conducted within the northern Vermont and northwestern New Hampshire market area where it is located. As a result, the 
Company and its borrowers may be especially vulnerable to the consequences of changes in the local economy and real 
estate market condifions. Notes 5 and 6 discuss the types of lending in which the Company engages. 

Use of estimates 

The preparafion of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make esfimates and 
assumpfions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilifies and disclosures of confingent assets and liabilifies at 
the date ofthe consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporfing 
period. Actual results could materially differ from those esfimates. Material esfimates that are parficularly suscepfible to 
significant change in the near term and involve inherent uncertainfies relate to the determinafion of the allowance for 
losses on loans, the valuafion of real estate acquired in connecfion with foreclosures or in safisfacfion of loans, deferred 
tax assets, judgments regarding valuafion and impairment of investment securifies and other assets, and pension plan 
accounfing. These esfimates involve a significant degree of complexity and subjecfivity and the amount ofthe change that 
is reasonably possible, should any of these esfimates prove inaccurate, cannot be esfimated. 
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Union Bankshares, Inc. and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Presentation of cash flows 

For purposes of presentafion in the consolidated statements of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on 
hand, amounts due from banks (including cash items in process of clearing). Federal funds sold (generally purchased and 
sold for one day periods), and overnight deposits. 

Trust operations 

Assets held by the Trust & Asset Management Division of Union in a fiduciary or agency capacity, other than trust cash on 
deposit with Union, are not included in these consolidated financial statements because they are not assets of Union or 
the Company. 

Fair value measurements 

The Company ufilizes the Financial Accounfing Standards Board ("FASB") Accounfing Standards Codificafion ('ASC") Topic 
820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, as guidance for accounfing for assets and liabilifies carried at fair value. 
This standard defines fair value as the price that would be received, without adjustment for transacfion costs, to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transacfion between market parficipants at the measurement date. Fair 
value is a market based measurement that should be determined based on assumpfions that market parficipants would 
use in pricing an asset or liability. The guidance in FASB ASC Topic 820 establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy, which 
priorifizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. A financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on 
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are: 

• Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in acfive markets that are accessible at the measurement date for idenfical, 
unrestricted assets or liabilifies; 

• Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilifies in acfive markets, quoted prices in markets that are not 
acfive, or inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, for substanfially the full term of the asset or 
liability; 

• Level 3 - Prices or valuafion techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement 
and unobservable (i.e., supported by little or no market acfivity). 

Investment securities 

Investment securifies purchased and held primarily for resale in the near future are classified as trading securifies and are 
reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses included in earnings. Debt securifies the Company has the posifive 
intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity and reported at amortized cost. Debt and equity 
securifies not classified as either held-to-maturity or trading are classified as available-for-sale. Investments classified as 
available-for-sale are reported at fair value. 

Accretion of discounts and amorfizafion of premiums arising at acquisition on investment securities available-for-sale are 
included in income using the effective interest method over the life of the securities to maturity or call date. Unrealized 
gains and losses on investment securities available-for-sale are excluded from earnings and reported in Accumulated other 
comprehensive income (loss), net of tax and reclassificafion adjustment, as a separate component of stockholders' equity. 
The specific identification method is used to determine realized gains and losses on sales of available-for-sale or trading 
securities. 

An unrealized loss is generally deemed to be other-than-temporary and a credit loss on a debt security is deemed to 
exist if the present value of the expected future cash fiows is less than the amortized cost basis of the security. The credit 
loss component of an other-than-temporary write down is reflected in earnings as realized losses in other income. The 
remaining portion of the impairment loss is recognized in other comprehensive income, provided the Company does not 
intend to sell the underlying debt security and it is "more likely than not" that the Company will not have to sell the debt 
security prior to recovery. 
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Union Bankshares, Inc. and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Management considers the following factors in determining whether an other-than-temporary impairment exists and the 
period over which the debt security is expected to recover: 

• The length of fime, and extent to which, the fair value has been less than the amortized cost; 
• Adverse conditions speciflcally related to the security, issuer, industry, or geographic area; 
• The historical and implied volafility of the fairvalue ofthe security; 
• The payment structure of the debt security and the likelihood ofthe issuer being able to make payments that may 

increase in the future; 
• Failure of the issuer of the security to make scheduled interest or principal payments; 
• Any changes to the rafing of the security by a rafing agency; and 
• Recoveries or addifional declines in fair value subsequent to the balance sheet date. 

Loans held for saie 

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or esfimated fair value 
in the aggregate. Loans transferred from held for sale to portfolio are transferred at the lower of cost or market value in 
the aggregate. Sales are normally made without recourse. Gains and losses on the disposifion of loans held for sale are 
determined on the specific idenfificafion basis. Net unrealized losses are recognized through a valuafion allowance by 
charges to income. 

Loans 

Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay
off are reported at their unpaid principal balances, adjusted for any charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, and any 
deferred fees or costs on originated loans and unamortized premiums or discounts on purchased loans. 

Loan interest income is accrued daily on outstanding balances. The accrual of interest is disconfinued when a loan is 
speciflcally determined to be impaired and/or management believes, after considering collection efforts and other factors, 
that the borrowers' financial condifion is such that collecfion of interest is doubtful. Normally, any unpaid interest previously 
accrued on those loans is reversed against interest income. A loan may be restored to accrual status when its flnancial 
status has been significantly improved and there is no principal or interest past due. A loan may also be restored to accrual 
status if the borrower makes six consecufive monthly payments or the lump sum equivalent. Income on nonaccrual loans 
is generally not recognized unless a loan is placed back in accrual status or after all principal has been collected. Interest 
income generally is not recognized on impaired loans unless the likelihood of further loss is remote. Interest payments 
received on such loans are generally applied as a reducfion of the loan principal balance. Delinquency status is determined 
based on contractual terms. 

Loan originafion, commitment fees and direct loan originafion costs are deferred and amorfized as an adjustment of the 
related loan's yield using methods that approximate the interest method. The Company generally amortizes these amounts 
overthe contractual life ofthe related loans. 

Allowance for loan losses 

The allowance for loan losses is established for esfimated losses in the loan portfolio through a provision for loan losses 
charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the loan balance is 
uncollecfible or in accordance with federal guidelines. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. 

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level which, by management's best estimate, is appropriate to absorb 
probable credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of the balance sheet date. The amount of the allowance is based 
on management's periodic evaluation of the collectability of the loan portfolio, including the nature and volume of the 
portfolio, credit concentrafions, trends in historical loss experience, esfimated value of any underlying collateral, specific 
impaired loans, and economic conditions. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, 
future additions to the allowance for loan losses may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions or other 
relevant factors. 
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Union Bankshares, Inc. and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, regularly review the Company's 
allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Company to recognize additions to the allowance for loan losses 
based on their judgments about informafion available to them at the time of their examination, which may not be currently 
available to management. 

The allowance consists of specific, general and unallocated components. The speciflc component relates to the loans that 
are classified as either doubtful, substandard or special mention. For such loans, the level of allowance allocable to those 
loans is determined through estimating probable loss for each individual credit based on its specific risk attributes. Loans 
are also evaluated for impairment and may be classified as impaired when management believes it is probable that the 
Company will not collect all the contractual interest and principal payments as scheduled in the loan agreement. Impaired 
loans may also include troubled loans that are restructured. A troubled debt restructuring occurs when the Company, 
for economic or legal reasons related to the borrower's flnancial difflculties, grants a concession to the borrower that 
would otherwise not be granted. Troubled debt restructurings may include the transfer of assets to the Company in partial 
satisfaction of a troubled loan, a modiflcafion of a loan's terms, or a combination of the two. Large groups of smaller 
balance homogeneous loans are collecfively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Company does not separately 
idenfify individual consumer, residenfial or small balance commercial loans for impairment evaluafion, unless such loans 
are subject to a restructuring agreement. A specific reserve amount is allocated to the allowance for individual loans 
that have been classified as impaired on the basis of the fair value of the collateral for collateral dependent loans, an 
observable market price, or the present value of anticipated future cash flows. The general component represents the 
level of allowance allocable to each loan portfolio category with similar risk characteristics and is determined based on 
historical loss experience, adjusted for qualitative factors. Qualitative factors considered include underwriting, economic 
and market condifions, portfolio composition, collateral values, delinquencies, lender experience and legal issues. An 
unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management's esfimate of probable losses. 
The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions 
used in the methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the portfolio. 

All evaluafions are inherently subjecfive as they require esfimates that are suscepfible to significant revision as more 
informafion becomes available or as changes occur in economic condifions or other relevant factors. 

Other real estate owned 

Real estate properties acquired through or in lieu of loan foreclosure are to be sold and are initially recorded at the 
estimated fair value at the date of acquisition establishing a new carrying basis. Thereafter, valuations are periodically 
performed by management, and the real estate is carried in Other assets at the lower of carrying amount or fair value, less 
esfimated cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations and changes in valuation are included in Expenses of other 
real estate owned, net. 

Premises and equipment 

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed principally by the 
straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The cost of assets sold or otherwise disposed of and 
the related accumulated depreciation is eliminated from the accounts and the resulting gains or losses are reflected in the 
statement of income. Maintenance and repairs are charged to current expense as incurred and the costs of major renewals 
and betterments are capitalized. Construction in progress is stated at cost, which includes the cost of construcfion and 
other direct costs attributable to the construcfion. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress unfil 
such fime as the relevant assets are completed and put into use. 

Federal Home Loan Bank stock 

As a member ofthe Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") of Boston, Union is required to invest in Class B common stock of 
the FHLB of Boston. The Class B common stock has a five year notice requirement for redemption and there is no guarantee 
of future redemption. Also, there is the possibility of future capital calls by the FHLB of Boston on member banks to 
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Union Bankshares, Inc. and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

ensure compliance with its capital plan. FHLB of Boston stock is reported in Other assets at its par value of $1,922,000 at 
December 31, 2009 and 2008. The stock is nonmarketable, and is redeemable by the FHLB of Boston at par value. 

Company-owned life insurance 

Company-owned life insurance ("COLI") represents life insurance on the lives of certain current or former directors or 
employees who have provided positive consent allowing the Company to be the beneficiary of such policies. The Company 
utilizes COLI as tax-efficient funding for the benefit obligations to its employees and directors, including obligafions under 
one of the Company's nonqualifled deferred compensafion plans. See Note 14. The Company is the primary beneficiary of 
the insurance policies. Increases in the cash value of the policies, as well as any gain on insurance proceeds received, are 
recorded in Income from Company owned life insurance, and are not subject to income taxes. COLI is recorded at the cash 
value of the policies, less any applicable cash surrender charges of which there are currently none. The COLI is reflected 
as an Other asset in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The Company reviews the financial strength of the 
insurance carriers prior to the purchase of COLI to ensure minimum credit rafings of at least investment grade. The flnancial 
strength of the carriers is reviewed annually and COLI with any individual carrier is limited by Company policy to 10% of 
capital plus reserves. 

Servicing assets 

Servicing assets are recognized as separate assets when rights are acquired through purchase or through sale of loans with 
servicing rights retained. Capitalized servicing rights are reported in Other assets and are amorfized against Noninterest 
income in proportion to, and overthe period of, the estimated future net servicing income ofthe underlying loans. The value 
of capitalized servicing rights represents the present value of the future servicing fees arising from the right to service loans 
that have been previously sold. Servicing assets are evaluated regularly for impairment based upon the fair value of the 
rights as compared to amortized cost. Impairment is determined by stratifying rights by predominant characteristics, such 
as interest rates and terms. Fair value of a stratum is determined using prices for similar assets with similar characteristics, 
when available, or based upon discounted cash flows using market-based assumpfions. 

Impairment is recognized through a valuafion allowance for an individual stratum, to the extent that estimated fair value is 
less than the capitalized amount for the stratum. 

investments carried at equity 

The Company has purchased various limited partnership interests in low income housing partnerships. These partnerships 
were established to acquire, own and rent residenfial housing for low and moderate income residents in northeastern and 
central Vermont. The investments are accounted for under a method approximafing the equity method of accounfing. These 
equity investments, which are included in Other assets, are recorded at cost and adjusted for the Company's proporfionate 
share ofthe partnerships' undistributed earnings or losses. 

Pension plans 

Union maintains a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all eligible employees who meet certain service 
requirements. The costs of this plan, based on actuarial computafions of current and esfimated future beneflts for 
employees, are charged to Pension and other employee benefits as a current operating expense. 

Union also has a contributory 401(k) pension plan covering all employees who meet certain service requirements. The plan 
is voluntary, and Union, through the discretionary matching component of the plan, contributed fifty cents for every dollar 
contributed by parficipants, up to six percent of each participant's salary in 2009 and 2008. 

Advertising costs 

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred and they were immaterial in 2009 and 2008. 
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Union Bankshares, Inc. and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Earnings per common share 

Earnings per common share are computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding 
during the period, retroacfively adjusted for stock splits and stock dividends and reduced for shares held in treasury. 
The weighted average shares outstanding were 4,466,760 and 4,488,888 for the years ended December 31, 2009 
and 2008, respecfively. There are 11,500 stock opfions outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 10,000 outstanding at 
December 31, 2008 excluded from the computafion of diluted earnings per share since inclusion of these stock options 
would be anti-dilutive. 

Income taxes 

The Company prepares its Federal income tax return on a consolidated basis. Federal income taxes are allocated to members 
of the consolidated group based on taxable income. The Company recognizes income taxes under the asset and liability 
method. This involves estimating the Company's actual current tax exposure as well as assessing temporary differences 
resulfing from differing treatment of items, such as timing of the deduction of expenses, for tax and GAAP purposes. These 
differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilifies, which are included in the Company's consolidated balance sheets as 
Other assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilifies are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income 
in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The Company must also assess 
the likelihood that any deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and to the extent that recovery 
is not likely, a valuafion allowance must be established. Signiflcant management judgment is required in determining the 
provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilifies. Low income housing tax credits are recognized as a 
reducfion ofthe Provision for income taxes in the year they are earned. 

Off-balance-sheet financial instruments 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is a party to off-balance-sheet financial instruments consisfing of 
commitments to originate credit, unused lines of credit, commitments under credit card arrangements, commitments to 
purchase investment securities, commitments to invest in low income housing partnerships, commercial letters of credit, 
standby letters of credit, and risk-sharing commitments on certain sold loans. Such financial instruments are recorded in 
the financial statements when they become fixed and certain. 

Comprehensive income (loss) 

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains, and losses be included in net income. 
Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as the after tax effect of unrealized gains and losses on investment 
securities available-for-sale that are not other-than-temporarily impaired and the unfunded liability for the defined beneflt 
pension plan, are not included in the Statement of Income, the cumulativeeffect of such items, net of tax effect, is reported 
as a separate component of the equity section of the Balance Sheet as Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). 
Such items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income. 

Transfers offinancial assets 

Transfers of flnancial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over 
transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when the assets have been isolated from the Company, the transferee 
obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the 
transferred assets, and the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement 
to repurchase them before their maturity. 

Stock option plan 

The Company recognizes stock-based compensafion expense based on the grant date estimated fair value of stock-based 
awards over the vesting period of the awards. 
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Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Adoption of recent accounting pronouncements 

On June 29, 2009, the FASB issued an accounting pronouncement establishing the FASB Accounting Standards Codification™ 
(the "ASC") as the source of authoritative accounting principles recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental 
entities. This pronouncement was effective for flnancial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after 
September 15, 2009, for most entities. On the effective date, all non-SEC accounfing and reporfing standards were 
superseded. The Company adopted this accounfing pronouncement for the interim period ended September 30, 2009, as 
required, and adoption did not have an impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. 

In December 2007, the FASB issued an accounting pronouncement, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consoiidated Financial 
Statements," and in January 2010, a scope clarification for "Accounting and Reporting for Decreases in Ownership of a 
Subsidiary" was issued. The objecfive of these pronouncements is to improve the relevance, comparability, and transparency 
of the financial information that a reporting entity provides in its consolidated financial statements by establishing 
accounfing and reporting standards that require specific financial statement disclosure, consistent accounfing treatment 
for changes in a parent's ownership interest and fair value measurement on the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. These 
pronouncements apply to all enfifies that prepare consolidated financial statements but affect only those enfifies that 
have an outstanding noncontrolling interest in one or more subsidiaries or that decrease ownership in or deconsolidate 
a subsidiary. The Company adopted these pronouncements effective January 1, 2009 with no impact on the consolidated 
flnancial statements. 

In December 2007, the FASB issued revised guidance, "Business Combinations". The objective ofthis pronouncement is to 
improve the relevance, representational faithfulness and comparability of the information that a reporting entity provides 
in its financial reports about a business combination and its effects. To accomplish that, the pronouncement establishes 
principles and requirements for how the acquirer; (1) recognizes and measures in its flnancial statements the identifiable 
assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree, (2) recognizes and measures the 
goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase, and (3) determines what informafion to 
disclose to enable users ofthe flnancial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects ofthe business combination. 
The pronouncement shall be applied prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 
the Company's adoption date of January 1, 2009. The Company did not have any business combinations during 2009; 
therefore, the adopfion of this standard did not impact the consolidated flnancial statements of the Company. 

During the flrst quarter of 2009, the Company adopted the remaining provisions of "Fair Value Measurements and 
Disclosures" related to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilifies, except for certain items that are recognized or 
disclosed at fair value in the flnancial statements on a recurring basis. The adoption of these provisions did not have a 
material impact on the consolidated financial statements; however, the effect of these provisions could be material in 
future periods to the extent they impact the manner in which the Company assesses fair value of our nonfinancial assets 
and liabilifies. See Note 18. 

In December 2008, the FASB issued changes to an accounting pronouncement, "Employers' Disclosures about Pensions 
and Other Postretirement Benefits," to provide guidance on an employer's disclosures about plan assets of a defined 
benefit pension or other postrefirement plan. It provides further guidance regarding the objecfives of the disclosures 
about plan assets in an employer's defined beneflt pension or other postrefirement plan which are to provide users of 
financial statements with an understanding of how investment allocafion decisions are made, including the factors that are 
pertinent to an understanding of investment policies and strategies; the major categories of plan assets; the inputs and 
valuafion techniques used to measure the fair value of plan assets; the effect of fair value measurements using signiflcant 
unobservable inputs on changes in plan assets for the period; and signiflcant concentrations of risk within plan assets. 
The disclosures about plan assets required shall be provided for flscal years ending after December 15, 2009. Upon inifial 
application, the provisions ofthe guidance are not required for earlier periods that are presented for comparative purposes. 
This pronouncement was adopted effective December 31, 2009 and impacts the note disclosure for the Company's defined 
benefit pension plan but does not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company. See Note 14. 

In May 2009 and February 2010, the FASB issued accounfing pronouncements, which establish general standards for 
disclosing and accounfing for events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or 
are available to be issued. The Company has complied with the requirements of these pronouncements. See Note 23. 
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Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

In August 2009, the FASB issued a change to an accounfing pronouncement, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures," 
which provides clariflcafion on measuring liabilities at fair value when a quoted price in an active market is not available. This 
pronouncement was effective forthe first reporfing period beginning after issuance. The adoption ofthis pronouncement 
on October 1, 2009 did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. See Note 18. 

Recent accounting guidance not yet adopted 

In June 2009, the FASB issued two related accounfing pronouncements changing the accounfing principles and disclosure 
requirements related to securitizations and special-purpose entities. Speciflcally, these pronouncements eliminate the 
concept of a "qualifying special-purpose enfity", change the requirements for derecognizing flnancial assets and change 
how a company determines when an enfity that is insufficiently capitalized or is not controlled through voting (or similar) 
rights should be consolidated. These pronouncements also expand exisfing disclosure requirements to include more 
informafion about transfers offinancial assets, including securitization transacfions, and where companies have confinuing 
exposure to the risks related to transferred flnancial assets. These pronouncements are effecfive as ofthe beginning of 
each reporting entity's first annual reporting period that begins after November 15, 2009, for interim periods within that 
first annual reporfing period and for interim and annual reporfing periods thereafter. Earlier application is prohibited. The 
recognition and measurement provisions regarding transfers of flnancial assets shall be applied to transfers that occur 
on or after the effective date. These new pronouncements will become effective for the Company on January 1, 2010. 
The Company does not expect that the adoption of these pronouncements will have a material impact on the Company's 
consolidated flnancial statements. 

In January 2010, the FASB issued an accounfing pronouncement, "Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements". 
This Accounfing Standards Update (ASU) reports on new disclosure requirements and clarificafions of exisfing requirements 
related to recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements and employers' disclosures about postrefirement 
benefit plan assets. The new disclosure requirements apply to interim and annual reporfing periods beginning after 
December 15, 2009, with one exception: The new rules regarding purchases, sales, issuances and settlements associated 
with Level 3 measurements will be effecfive for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010, and for interim periods 
within those flscal years. The adopfion ofthis accounting standard is not expected to have a material effect on the Company's 
consolidated flnancial statements. 

Reclassiflcations 

Certain amounts in the 2008 flnancial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. 

Note 2. Restrictions on Cash and Due From Banks 

The Company is required to maintain vault cash or noninterest bearing reserve balances with Federal Reserve Bank of 
Boston. Total reserve balances required at December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $307,000 and $423,000, respectively, which 
were both safisfied by vault cash. 

The nature of the Company's business requires that it maintain amounts due from correspondent banks which, at fimes, 
may exceed federally insured limits. The balances in these accounts at December 31, were as follows: 

2009 2008 

Noninterest bearing accounts 
Federal Reserve Bank of Boston 
Federal funds sold 
Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston 

$ 826,625 $ 1,403,737 

18,039,925 21,339,690 

- 178,856 

191,983 47,120 

No losses have been experienced in these accounts and the Company believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with 
respect to the accounts. 
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Note 2. Restrictions on Cash and Due From Banks (Continued) 

The Company was required to maintain contracted clearing balances of $1,000,000 at both December 31, 2009 and 2008, 
which are included in the Federal Reserve Bank balances above. Balances in excess ofthe contracted clearing amount at 
the Federal Reserve Bank started earning interest during the fourth quarter of 2008. 

Note 3. Interest Bearing Deposits in Banks 

Interest bearing deposits in banks consist of cerfificates of deposit purchased from various financial institutions. Deposits 
at each institufion are generally maintained at or below the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") insurable limits 
of $250,000 or $100,000 depending upon the maturity date. Certificates are held with rates ranging from 0.71% to 5.51% 
and mature at various dates through 2014, with $13,575,000 scheduled to mature in 2010. 

Note 4. Investment Securities 

Investment securifies available-for-sale as of the balance sheet dates consisted of the following: 

December 31, 2009: 

Debt securifies: 
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises 
Mortgage-backed 
State and polifical subdivisions 
Corporate 

Total debt securities 
Marketable equity securities 
Mutual funds 

Total 

December 31, 2008: 

Debt securifies: 
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises 
Mortgage-backed 
State and political subdivisions 
Corporate 

Total debt securities 
Marketable equity securifies 
Mutual funds 

Total 

Amortized 
Cost 

$ 4,498,813 
4,750,024 
7,547,916 
7,175,437 

23,973,190 
49,717 
82,028 

$24,104,935 

Amortized 
Cost 

$ 1,500,528 
9,163,709 
7,517,231 
9,621,084 

27,902,552 
14,022 
51,860 

$27,958,434 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 

$ 2,535 
112,023 
155,786 
349,200 

529,544 

$ 529,544 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 

$ 32,220 
128,238 
34,873 

163,329 

358,550 

$ 358,660 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

$(47,570) 
(2,345) 

(27,483) 
(2,500) 

(79,899) 
(5,991) 

$(85,890) 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

$ 
(17,317) 

(172,573) 
(297,798) 

(487,688) 
(5,022) 

$ (492,710) 

Fair 
Value 

$ 4,453,778 
4,859,701 
7,686,219 
7,523,137 

24,522,835 
43,726 
82,028 

$24,548,589 

Fair 
Value 

$ 1,532,748 
9,274,630 
7,479,531 
9,485,515 

27,773,524 
9,000 

51,850 

$27,834,384 

Investment securifies with a carrying amount of $3,641,077 and $3,089,336 at December 31, 2009 and 2008 respectively, 
were pledged as collateral for public deposits and for other purposes as required or permitted by law. 
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Note 4. Investment Securities (Continued) 

Information pertaining to investment securities available-for-sale with gross unrealized losses as of the balance sheet date, 
aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position, 
follows: 

Less Than 12 Months Over 12 Months Total 

December 31, 2009: 

Debt securifies: 
U.S. Government-sponsored 
enterprises 

Mortgage-backed 
State and political subdivisions 
Corporate 

Total debt securities 

Marketable equity securities 

Total 

December 31, 2008: 
Debt securities: 

Mortgage-backed 
State and political subdivisions 
Corporate 

Total debt securities 

Marketable equity securifies 

Total 

Fair 
Value 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Loss 
Fair 

Value 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Loss 
Fair 

Value 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Loss 

3,951,243 
545,496 

1,120,319 
497,500 

$ (47,570) 
(546) 

(10,814) 
(2,500) 

- s - $ 
160,442 (1,800) 

275,199 (16,669) 

3,951,243 

705,938 

1,396,518 

497,500 

(47,570) 

(2,345) 

(27,483) 

(2,500) 

6,114,558 
35,225 

$6,149,784 

Less Than 

Fair 
Value 

(61,430) 
(458) 

$ (61,898) 

12 Months 
Gross 

Unrealized 
Loss 

435,641 (18,469) 
8,500 (5,523) 

$ 445,141 $(23,992) 

Over 12 Months 
Gross 

Fair Unrealized 
Value Loss 

5,551,199 (79,899) 
43,726 (5,991) 

$ 5,594,925 $ (85,890) 

Total 
Gross 

Fair Unrealized 
Value Loss 

$ 192,529 

3,780,671 

5,623,037 

$ (3,501) 

(172,573) 

(285,431) 

$ 944,099 

238,632 

$(13,815) 

(11,357) 

1,136,528 
3,780,571 
5,851,559 

(17,317) 
(172,573) 
(297,798) 

9,596,237 (452,505) 1,182,731 
9,000 

(25,183) 
(5,022) 

10,778,968 
9,000 

(487,588) 
(5,022) 

$9,595,237 $(462,505) $1,191,731 $(30,205) $10,787,958 $(492,710) 

The Company evaluates all investment securities on a quarterly basis, and more frequently when economic conditions 
warrant to determine if an other-than-temporary impairment exists. A debt security is considered impaired if the fair value 
is lower than its amortized cost basis at the report date. If impaired, management then assesses whether the unrealized 
loss is other-than-temporary. Prior to adoption by the FASB of current authoritative guidance, effective for the Company 
on April 1, 2009, the Company generally recognized an other-than-temporary impairment on debt securities when full 
recovery of value was not expected or the Company did not have the ability and intent to hold such securities until they 
have fully recovered their amortized cost. Prior to April 1, 2009, GAAP required other-than-temporary impairment losses, 
amounting to the difference between the amortized cost and fair value, to be recorded, net of tax effect, through net 
income thereby establishing a new cost basis ofthe security. 

During 2008, the Company recognized an other-than-temporary impairment loss of $511,598 ($337,655, net of tax) on two 
available for sale corporate debt securities. This impairment loss was recorded, net of tax effect, through net income and 
as an adjustment to the amortized cost of the securities. These two corporate debt securifies were sold in December 2009 
resulting in realized gains of $183,574 ($121,225, net of tax). 

Current authoritative guidance provides that an unrealized loss on a debt security is generally deemed to be other-than-
temporary and a credit loss is deemed to exist if the present value of the expected future cash flows is less than the 
amortized cost basis of the debt security. The credit loss component of an other-than-temporary impairment write-down 
is recorded, net of tax effect, through net income as a component of net other-than-temporary impairment losses in the 
consolidated statement of income, while the remaining porfion ofthe impairment loss is recognized in other comprehensive 
income (loss), provided the Company does not intend to sell the underlying debt security and it is "more likely than not" 
that the Company will not have to sell the debt security prior to recovery. 
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Note 4. Investment Securities (Continued) 

At December 31, 2009, fifteen debt securifies, consisting of one collateralized mortgage obligafion issued by an U.S. 
Government sponsored enterprise, two private collateralized mortgage obligations, seven U.S. Government-sponsored 
enterprise bonds, one corporate bond, four municipal bonds and two marketable equity securifies had unrealized losses 
totaling $85,890. This amounts to aggregate depreciafion of 0.36% of the Company's amortized cost of the entire portfolio. 
Three of these securities, consisting of one private collateralized mortgage obligation, one state and polifical subdivision 
bond and one marketable equity security, have been in an unrealized loss posifion for more than twelve months. The 
Company has the ability to hold the debt securities until maturity, or for the foreseeable future. No declines were deemed 
by management to be other-than-temporary at December 31, 2009. 

The Company's investment securifies are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit. The ongoing 
credit and liquidity crisis in the United States confinues to have far reaching implicafions for financial markets. Due to the 
level of risk associated with certain investment securifies and the level of uncertainty related to changes in the value of 
investment securities, coupled with recent economic events, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks, further 
deterioration in credit quality and/or the continuation of the current imbalances in liquidity that exist in the flnancial 
marketplace in the near term would materially affect the amounts reported in the consolidated flnancial statements in 
future periods. 

Proceeds from the sale of securities available-for-sale were $4,499,013 and $1,803,129 in 2009 and 2008, respectively 
Gross realized gains from sales of investments available-for-sale were $257,824 and $34,271 and gross realized losses were 
$278 and $18,046 for the years 2009 and 2008, respectively 

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities by contractual scheduled maturity of debt securities available-for-
sale as of December 31, 2009 were as follows: 

Due in one year or less 
Due from one to five years 
Due from five to ten years 
Due afterten years 

Mortgage-backed securities 

Total debt securities 

Amortized 
Cost 

$ 1,047,652 
5,175,115 
5,543,293 
5,457,096 

Fair 
Value 

$ 1,052,231 
5,352,581 
6,772,292 
6,465,930 

19,223,166 
4,750,024 

19,663,134 
4,859,701 

$23,973,190 $24,522,835 

Actual maturities may differ for certain debt securities that may be called by the issuer prior to the contractual maturity. 
Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities in mortgage-backed securities because the mortgages underlying 
the securities may be prepaid, usually without any penalties. Therefore, these mortgage-backed securities are not included 
in the maturity categories in the above maturity summary 

Note 5. Loans Held for Sale and Loan Servicing 

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, Loans held forsale consisted of conventional residential mortgages and commercial real 
estate mortgages originated for subsequent sale. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the estimated fairvalue of these loans 
was in excess of their carrying value, and therefore no valuation reserve was necessary for loans held forsale. 

Commercial and mortgage loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying balance sheets. The unpaid 
principal balances of commercial and mortgage loans serviced for others were $123,231,115 and $100,599,231 at December 
31, 2009 and 2008, respecfively Loans sold during 2009 and 2008 totaled $60,431,024 and $23,240,879, respectively Net 
gains realized on the sale of those loans amounted to $959,541 and $419,406 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 
2008, respectively. There were no guarantees to repurchase loans for any amount at December 31, 2009, but there were 
risk sharing commitments on certain sold loans totaling $91,625 as of such date. 
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Note 5. Loans Held for Sale and Loan Servicing (Continued) 

The Company generally retains the servicing rights on loans sold. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the unamorti'zed balance 
of servicing rights on loans sold with servicing retained was $529,833 and $329,029, respectively and is included in Other 
assets. The estimated fair value of these servicing rights was in excess of their carrying value at both December 31, 2009 
and 2008, and therefore no impairment reserve was necessary. Loan servicing rights of $470,457 and $188,628 were 
capitalized in 2009 and 2008, respectively Amortization of servicing rights was $269,552 and $156,461 for 2009 and 2008, 
respectively. 

Note 6. Loans 

The composition of Net loans at December 31, was as follows: 

2009 2008 

Residential real estate 
Construction real estate 
Commercial real estate 
Commercial 
Consumer 
Municipal loans 

Gross loans 
Deduct: 

Allowance for loan losses 
Net deferred loan costs (fees) 

Net loans 

Residential real estate loans aggregating $7,956,531 and $19,078,340 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, were 
pledged as collateral on deposits of municipalities. Qualified flrst mortgages held by Union may also be pledged as collateral 
for borrowings from the FHLB of Boston under a blanket lien. 

Loans in nonaccrual status were $3,738,178 and $2,927,048 and loans past due 90 days or more and sfill accruing were 
$537,670 and $4,358,352, as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respecfively 

Information regarding impaired loans as of or for the years ended December 31, was as follows: 

$ 123,915,103 

19,391,035 

159,094,575 

15,596,785 

6,967,268 

23,852,350 

348,827,116 

(3,492,783) 

77,508 

$ 345,411,841 

$ 128,292,261 

19,037,424 

153,821,188 

18,832,901 

6,734,632 

23,519,543 

350,237,949 

(3,556,205) 

(106,475) 

$ 345,575,269 

2009 2008 

$3,328,006 

341,100 

55,355 

2,474,512 

$ 415,277 

99,320 

15,518 

1,021,805 

Impaired loans 
Total allowance for loan losses related to impaired loans 
Interest income recognized on impaired loans 
Average investment in impaired loans 

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company was not committed to lend any additional funds to borrowers whose loans 
were nonperforming, impaired or restructured. Aggregate interest on nonaccrual loans not recognized was $563,517 and 
$459,994 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively 
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Note 7. Allowance for Loan Losses 

Changes in the Allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, were as follows: 

Balance, beginning 
Provision for loan losses 
Recoveries of amounts charged off 

Amounts charged off 

Balance, ending 

Note 8. Premises and Equipment 

The major classes of Premises and equipment and accumulated depreciation at December 31, were as follows: 

2009 2008 

2009 

$3,556,205 

400,000 

59,873 

4,016,078 

(523,295) 

$3,492,783 

2008 

$3,377,857 

335,000 

49,077 

3,761,934 

(205,729) 

$3,556,205 

Land and land improvements 
Building and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Construction in progress and deposits on equipment 

Less accumulated depreciation 

$ 1,834,091 
7,555,655 
5,554,709 

270,833 

$ 1,492,868 
7,550,122 
5,581,418 

206,439 

15,325,288 
(7,711,969) 

14,830,847 
(7,370,154) 

$ 7,613,319 $ 7,460,693 

Depreciation included in Occupancy expense amounted to $713,659 and $784,375 for the years ended December 31, 2009 
and 2008, respectively. 

The Company is obligated under noncancelable operating leases for premises that expire in various years through the year 
2013. Options to renew for additional periods are available with these leases. Future minimum rental commitments for 
these leases with original or remaining terms of one year or more at December 31, 2009 were as follows: 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

$ 89,110 

75,110 

37,952 

18,455 

$ 220,637 

Rent expense for 2009 and 2008 amounted to $119,531 and $113,957, respecfively 

Occupancy expense is shown in the consolidated statements of income, net of rental income of $103,746 and $100,204 in 
2009 and 2008, respectively 

Note 9. Other Real Estate Owned 

There were four properties valued at $885,099 in other real estate owned at December 31, 2009 and six properties valued 
at $657,801 at December 31, 2008, which were included in Other assets. There was an allowance for losses on other real 
estate owned at December 31, 2009 and 2008 of $47,131 and $8,231, respectively, which has been netted out of the 
foregoing values. 
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Note 10. Investments Carried at Equity 

The Company has purchased from time to time various limited partnership interests established to acquire, own and rent 
residential housing for elderly, low or moderate income individuals in northeastern and central Vermont. The carrying 
values of investments carried at equity were $2,769,736 and $3,195,706 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The 
investments are included in Other assets. The capital contributions payable related to these investments were $179,420 
and $373,040 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively and are included in Accrued interest and other liabilifies. 
The provision for undistributed net losses of the partnerships charged to earnings was $425,970 and $389,442 for 2009 
and 2008, respectively. The tax credits related to these investments were $424,932 and $506,710 for the years ended 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and recorded as a reducfion ofthe Provision for income taxes. 

Note 11. Deposits 

The following is a summary of Interest bearing deposits at December 31: 

NOW accounts 
Savings and money market accounts 
Time deposits, $100,000 and over 
Other time deposits 

The following is a summary of time deposits by maturity at December 31, 2009: 

2009 2008 

$ 59,198,702 
104,801,340 

50,215,604 
74,481,646 

$ 65,353,751 
96,680,688 
55,321,181 
83,699,449 

$ 308,698,292 $303,055,069 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

$105,024,225 
11,895,535 
10,106,361 

3,754,253 
2,907,775 

$134,698,250 

Note 12. Borrowed Funds 

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, Borrowed funds were comprised of option advance borrowings from the FHLB of Boston 
of $30,992,504 and $27,415,252, respectively. The option advance borrowings are a mix of straight and callable bullets, 
balloons and amorfizers with maturities through 2027. All ofthe borrowings had fixed interest rates ranging from 0.19% to 
5.61% at December 31, 2009 and ranging from 2.25% to 5.51% at December 31, 2008. The weighted average interest rates 
on the borrowings were 3.52% and 4.30% at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

The contractual payments due for borrowed funds as of December 31, 2009, were as follows: 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 and thereafter 

$ 5,277,755 
2,529,757 
1,348,515 
5,863,664 

14,972,903 

$30,992,604 

Additionally, Union maintains an IDEAL Way Line of Credit with the FHLB of Boston. As of December 31, 2009, the total 
available amount of this line was $551,000. There were no borrowings outstanding on this line at December 31, 2009. 
Interest on this line is chargeable at a rate determined by the FHLB of Boston and payable monthly based on daily balances 
outstanding. 
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Collateral on these borrowings consists of FHLB of Boston stock purchased by Union, all funds placed on deposit with the 
FHLB of Boston, qualified first mortgages held by Union, and any addifional holdings which may be pledged as security. 

Union also maintains lines of credit with correspondent banks for the purchase of overnight Federal Funds. As of 
December 31, 2009, the total available amount of these lines was $10.5 million with no outstanding borrowings. Interest on 
these borrowings is chargeable at the Federal Funds rate at the time of the borrowing and is payable daily. 

Note 13. Income Taxes 

The components of the Provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, were as follows: 

2009 

Current tax provision 
Deferred tax (benefit) provision 

2008 

$1,431,358 $ 786,902 
(11,415) 232,643 

$1,419,943 $1,019,545 

The total provision for income taxes differs from the amounts computed at the statutory federal income tax rate of 34% 
primarily due to the following for the years ended December 31: 

Computed "expected" tax expense 
Tax exempt interest 
Increase in cash surrender value life insurance and life insurance proceeds 
Tax credits on limited partnership investments 
Other 

Components of the deferred tax asset 
Bad debts 
Mark-to-market loans 
Nonaccrual loan interest 
Deferred compensafion 
Unrealized loss on investment securities available-for-sale 
Net pension liability 
Other 

Total deferred tax asset 

Components of the deferred tax liability 
Depreciation 
Mortgage servicing rights 
Limited partnership investments 

Unrealized gain on investment securities available-for-sale 

Total deferred tax liability 

Net deferred tax asset 

2009 

Listed below are the significant components of the net deferred tax asset at December 31: 

2009 

2,511,873 

(228,191) 
(180,143) 
(307,766) 
(184,842) 

(900,942) 

$1,510,931 

2008 

$2,259,814 $2,082,725 
(420,120) (356,903) 

(25,325) (123,373) 
(424,932) (606,710) 

31,505 33,805 

$1,419,943 $1,019,545 

2008 

$ 989,450 $1,011,013 
9,596 13,503 

225,595 156,398 
435,470 422,553 

- 45,577 
829,304 1,438,696 

22,457 8,482 

3,096,232 

(212,255) 
(111,870) 
(323,411) 

(647,536) 

$2,448,696 

Deferred tax assets are recognized subject to management's judgment that realizafion is more likely than not as GAAP 
allows for the recognition and measurementof deductible temporary differences to the extentthat it is more likelythan not 
that the deferred tax asset will be realized. Based on the temporary taxable items, historical taxable income and estimates 
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of future taxable income, the Company believes that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets at December 31, 
2009 will be realized and therefore no valuation allowance is warranted. 

Net deferred income tax assets are included in Other assets in the balance sheet at December 31, 2009 and 2008. 

Based on management's evaluafion, management has concluded that there were no signiflcant uncertain tax positions 
requiring recognition in the Company's flnancial statements at December 31, 2009 or 2008. Although the Company is 
not currently the subject of a tax examination by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS), the Company's tax years ended 
December 31, 2005 through 2009 are open to examinafion by the IRS under the applicable statute of limitafions. 

The Company may from fime to fime be assessed interest and/or penalfies by federal or state tax jurisdicfions, although 
any such assessments historically have been minimal and immaterial to the Company's flnancial results. In the event that 
the Company receives an assessment for interest and/or penalties, it will be classifled in the flnancial statements as Other 
expenses. 

Note 14. Employee Benefit Plans 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan: Un\on sponsors a noncontributory defined beneflt pension plan covering all eligible employees. 
The plan provides deflned beneflts based on years of service and flnal average salary. The minimum required contribution 
under the ERISA guidelines for 2009 was $601,287 and for 2008 was $50,938. Union measures defined benefit plan assets 
and obligations as of December 31, its fiscal year-end. 

Union's policy is to accrue annually an amount equal to the actuarially calculated expense for current and esfimated future 
benefits. Union made tax deducfible voluntary contributions of $1,505,575 and $131,052 to the pension plan in 2009 and 
2008, respectively, over and above the minimum required which are included in employer contributions below. Information 
pertaining to the activity in the plan is as follows: 

Obligations and funded status at December 31: 

Change in projected benefit obligafion 
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Actuarial (gain) loss 
Benefits paid 

Projected beneflt obligation at end of year 

Change in fair value of plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 
Actual gain (loss) on plan assets 
Employer contributions 

Beneflts paid 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 

Net liability for pension beneflts 

Accumulated benefit obligation at December 31 

2009 

$12,344,137 

577,443 

720,209 

(220,277) 

(237,377) 

13,184,135 

7,112,679 

1,762,737 

2,106,963 

2008 

$11,058,973 

544,728 

669,768 

306,473 

(235,805) 

12,344,137 

9,807,489 

(2,641,005) 

182,000 

(237,377) 

10,745,002 

$(2,439,133) 

2009 

$10,044,214 

(235,805) 

7,112,679 

$(5,231,458) 

2008 

$ 9,319,157 
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Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet consist of: 

Prepaid pension benefit in Other assets 
Liability for defined benefit pension plan 

2009 2008 

$ 509,185 $ -
$(3,048,318) $(5,231,458) 

The impact of the pension activity for 2009 and 2008 on Other comprehensive income (loss) is detailed in Note 22. 

The Company uses the alternate amortization method for prior service costs, as provided in FASB ASC Topic 715, "Employers' 
Accounting for Pensions." 

Net periodic pension beneflt cost for 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following components: 

2009 2008 

Service cost 
Interest cost on projected beneflt obligation 
Expected return on plan assets 
Amorfizafion of prior service cost 
Amorfizafion of net loss 

Net periodic beneflt cost 

$ 577,443 $ 544,728 
720,209 569,768 

(533,836) (658,539) 
6,158 6,158 

315,214 27,990 

$1,086,188 $ 590,005 

It is esfimated that the net periodic beneflt cost for 2010 will include approximately $6 thousand of amorfizafion of prior 
service cost and $161 thousand of amorfizafion of net actuarial loss. 

Weighted average assumptions used to determine beneflt obligation at December 31, were as follows: 

2009 

Discount rate 

Rate ofcompensation increases 

2008 

6.00% 

4.50% 

5.00% 

4.50% 

Weighted average assumpfions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31, were as 
follows: 

2009 2008 

5.00% 
4.50% 
6.75% 

6.00% 
4.50% 
5.75% 

Discount rate 
Rate of compensafion increases 
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 

The overall expected long-term rate of return on assets is consistent with future inflation assumptions as well as consideration 
of historical asset returns and the current flnancial marketplace. The return is more conservative than the plan's long-term 
actual results and is at a level that management believes is sustainable. The 2009 benefit obligation discount rate is based 
on the plan's expected benefit payment stream utilizing December 2009 benchmark pension liability index yield curve spot 
rates and a review of published high quality bond indices. 

Union's pension plan asset allocations at December 31, 2009 and 2008, by asset category based on their fair values were 
as follows: 

Asset Category 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Interest bearing deposits in banks 
Debt securities 
Equity securities 
International mutual funds 

Total 

2009 2008 

4.2% 
12.2% 
20.8% 
57.3% 

5.5% 

100.0% 

18.5% 
4.2% 

23.9% 
47.6% 

5.8% 

100.0% 

Union Bankshares, Inc. 2009 Annual Report • Page 33 



Union Bankshares, Inc. and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

Note 14. Employee Benefit Plans (Continued) 

The investment philosophy for the pension plan is to prudently invest the assets of the plan and future contributions 
received in a diversified manner that will ensure the future benefits due to parficipants and beneficiaries over a long-term 
horizon as well as provide liquidity to pay current benefits. The Trustees of the plan seek to protect the pension plan assets 
through prudent asset allocafion, FDIC insurance on a porfion of plan assets, manager selection and periodic reviews. 
Investments in stocks and fixed income investments should be diversified in a way which is consistent with risk tolerance, 
investment objecfives and current financial market risks. 

In orderto achieve this goal the investment objecfive is to maintain a mix of growth and income investments with allocation 
as follows, with no more than 20% of the equity portion ofthe portfolio invested in foreign equities: 

Equity securities and international mutual funds 
Debt securifies 
Cash and equivalents 

55-65% 
35-45% 

0-5% 

Thereare no securities of the Company or Union held by the pension plan. The assets of the plan are managed by the Trust 
& Asset Management Division of Union with the advice of its registered investment advisor, under the guidance of the 
plan's Trustees. The estimated employer contribufion for 2010 is $1 million. 

The fair values of the Company's pension plan assets at December 31, 2009, segregated by fair value hierarchy level, are 
summarized below: 

Fair Value Measurements 
Quoted Prices in Significant 

Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable 
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Interest bearing deposits in banks 
Debt securifies and bond funds 
Marketable equity securities 
Equity mutual and exchange traded funds 

Total 

FairValue 

$ 450,690 
1,307,994 
2,263,557 
1,548,408 
5,174,253 

(Level 1) 

$ 450,590 

— 
104,150 

1,548,408 
5,174,253 

(Level 2) 

$ 
1,307,994 
2,159,507 

— 
— 

(Level 3) 

$ 
— 
— 
— 
— 

$ 10,745,002 $7,277,501 $3,457,501 $ 

The fair values of the pension plan assets are determined by an independent pricing service which, given the nature ofthe 
assets within the portfolio, is able to utilize quoted prices in an active market to value the majority of the assets held. The 
market inputs sought for assets without a specific quote listed, in approximate order of priority, include benchmark yields, 
reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers and reference 
data including market research publications that vary by asset class. For certain security types, additional inputs may be 
used, or some standard inputs may not be applicable. 

The following table summarizes the estimated future beneflt payments expected to be paid under the Plan: 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
Years 2015 to 2019 

$ 267,469 
302,746 
450,572 
507,300 
586,587 

3,230,357 

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plans: Union Bankshares, Inc. and Union have two nonqualified Deferred Compensation 
Plans for Directors and certain key officers. The 2008 Amended and Restated Nonqualified Deferred Compensafion Plan of 
Union Bankshares, Inc. ("2008 Plan") replaced a 1990 Plan that was not compliant with section 409A ofthe Internal Revenue 
Code. The amendments also included an increase in the amounts to be accrued under the 2008 Plan, subject to future 
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vesting requirements, of $154,811 in the aggregate, in order to align projected payouts under the 2008 Plan with original 
commitments made to parficipants. The Company accrued an expense of $55,754 in 2009 and $41,304 in 2008 under the 
2008 Plan. The benefit obligafions under the 2008 Plan represent general unsecured obligations of the Company and no 
assets are segregated for such payments. However, the Company and Union have purchased life insurance contracts on the 
lives of each participant in order to fund these benefits. The benefits accrued under this 2008 Plan aggregated $1,198,732 
and $1,190,784 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respecfively, and are included in Accrued interest and other liabilities. The 
cash surrender value of the life insurance policies purchased to fund the 2008 Plan aggregated $1,493,262 and $1,415,836 
at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respecfively, and is included in Other assets in the Company's balance sheets. During 
2008, the Company received nontaxable death benefit proceeds totaling $1.0 million, and recorded a resulfing $241,864 
nontaxable gain, which is included in Income from Company owned life insurance for 2008. 

An Execufive Nonqualifled Excess Plan was adopted in 2005 for Directors and certain key officers. The 2006 Plan is a 
defined contribution plan which provides a means by which participants may electtodefer receipt of current compensation 
from the Company or its subsidiary in order to provide retirement or other benefits as selected in the individual adoption 
agreements. Participants may select among designated reference investments consisting of investment funds, with the 
performance of the participant's account mirroring the selected reference investment. Distributions are made only upon a 
qualifying distribution event, which may include a separation from service, death, disability or unforeseeable emergency, 
or upon a date specified in the participant's deferral election form. The 2005 Plan is intended to comply with the provisions 
ofSection 409A ofthe Internal Revenue Code. The 2006 Plan is unfunded represenfing a general unsecured obligation of 
the Company of $82,061 and $52,049 as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respecfively 

401(k) Plan: Union maintains a defined contribution 401(k) plan under which employees may elect to make tax deferred 
contributions of up to the IRS maximum from their annual salary. All employees meeting service requirements are eligible 
to parficipate in the plan. Company contributions are fully vested after three years of service. Union's employer matching 
contributions to the plan are at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Employer matching contributions to the plan were 
$135,001 and $140,881 for 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

Note 15. Stock Option Plan 

Under the 2008 Incentive Stock Option Plan ("Plan"), the Company's Board of Directors may grant to certain key employees 
incentive stock opfions to purchase shares of the Company's common stock. As of December 31, 2009, of the 50,000 
shares authorized for grants under the plan, 46,000 shares remain available for future opfion grants. The Company's 1998 
Incentive Stock Option Plan expired in 2008. As of December 31, 2009, 7,500 options granted under the 1998 Plan remained 
outstanding and exercisable, with the last of such options expiring in December of 2012. 

The exercise price of the options under both plans is equal to the market price of the stock at the date of grant; therefore, 
the intrinsic value ofthe options at the date ofthe grant is $0. All options have a one year requisite service period, vest after 
one year, and have a five-year contractual term. There were 4,000 options granted in 2009 and no options were granted 
in 2008. The compensafion cost that has been charged against income for the 2008 Plan was $11,648 for 2009 and $5,282 
for 2008. 

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes based option valuation model. The 
estimated weighted average grant date fair values for options granted during 2009 and the weighted average assumptions 
used are presented in the following table: 

2009 

Fairvalue per share 
Expected volafility 
Expected dividends 
Risk-free interest rate 
Expected term (in years) 
Vesting periods (in years) 

$2.91 
34.07% 

5.84% 
1.15% 

3.0 
1.0 
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Expected volatilities are based on historical volatilities ofthe Company's stock, and, possibly, other factors. The Company 
uses historical data to esfimate opfion exercise and employee terminafion within the valuation model. The expected term 
of options granted is estimated from past exercise activity, and represents the period of time that granted opfions are 
expected to be outstanding. The risk free interest rate for periods within the contractual life ofthe option is based on the 
U.S. Treasury yield curve at the time of grant. The expected dividend rate is estimated by annualizing the last dividend paid 
divided by the closing price ofthe Company's stock on the grant date ofthe option. 

The following summarizes the option acfivity under the Plans as of December 31, 2009, and changes during the year then 
ended: 

Shares 

10,000 
4,000 

(2,500) 

11,500 

7,500 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

$23.21 
$19.19 

$26.60 

$21.07 

$18.07 

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Term 

2.58 

2.00 

Period 
End 

Aggregate 
Intrinsic 
Value 

— 
— 

Outstanding at January 1, 2009 
Granted 
Exercised 

Forfeited/expired 

Outstanding at December 31, 2009 

Exerciseable at December 31, 2009 

There were no options exercised during 2009 or 2008. A summary of the status of the Company's total nonvested opfions 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009 is as follows: 

Weighted 
Average 

Grant Date 
Shares Fair Value 

Nonvested at January 1, 2009 
Granted 
Vested 

Forfeited 

Nonvested at December 31, 2009 

4,000 

4,000 

$2.91 

$2.91 

As of December 31, 2009, there was no unrecognized compensafion cost related to nonvested share-based compensafion 
arrangements granted under either Plan. The total fair value of shares vested during the year ended December 31, 2008 
was $4,480. There were no shares vested during 2009. 

Note 16. Financial Instruments With Off-Balance-Sheet Risk 

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the 
financing needsof its customers and to reduce its own exposure to fluctuafions in interest rates. These financial instruments 
include commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit, interest rate caps and floors written on adjustable-rate 
loans, commitments to parficipate in or sell loans, commitments to buy or sell securities and risk-sharing commitments on 
certain sold loans under the Mortgage Partnership Finance (MPF) program with the FHLB of Boston. 

Such instrumentsinvolve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in 
the balance sheet. The contract or notional amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Company 
has in particular classes of flnancial instruments and the potenfial impact on the Company's future financial posifion, 
financial performance and cash flow. 
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The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for 
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual notional amount of those 
instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does 
for on-balance-sheet instruments. For interest rate caps and floors embedded in adjustable-rate loans, the contract or 
notional amounts do not represent exposure to credit loss. The Company controls the risk of interest rate cap agreements 
through credit approvals, limits, and monitoring procedures. Interest rate caps and floors on adjustable rate loans permit 
the Company to manage its interest rate risk and cash flow risk on these loans within parameters established by Company 
policy. 

The Company generally requires collateral or other security to support flnancial instruments with credit risk. The following 
table shows financial instruments outstanding whose contract amount represents credit risk at December 31: 

Contract or 
Notional Amount 

2009 2008 

Commitments to originate loans 
Unused lines of credit 
Standby and commercial letters of credit 
Credit card arrangements 

MPF credit enhancement obligation, net (See Note 17) 

Total 

$ 16,677,358 
34,534,066 
2,438,399 
1,750,282 

86,142 

$ 9,113,814 
41,679,732 

1,949,342 
1,735,400 

62,156 

$ 55,486,257 $ 54,540,444 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition 
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates within 90 days ofthe commitment. Unused 
lines of credit are renewable at least annually except for home equity lines which generally have a specified draw period 
followed by a specifled repayment period. Unused lines may have other termination clauses and may require payment of 
a fee. 

Since many ofthe commitments and lines are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts 
do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer's credit worthiness on a case-
by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company, upon issuance of a commitment 
to extend credit is based on management's credit evaluation ofthe customer. Collateral held varies but may include real 
estate, accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, and income-producing commercial properties. 

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a customer 
to a third party. Those guarantees are issued to support customer's private borrowing arrangements or guarantee the 
customer's contractual performance on behalf of a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essenfially 
the same as that involved in extending loans to customers and the Company evaluates each customer's credit worthiness 
on a case-by-case basis. The fair value of standby letters of credit has not been included in the balance sheets for either 
year as the fair value is immaterial. 

The Company did not hold or issue derivative instruments or hedging instruments during the years ended 
December 31, 2009 and 2008. 

Note 17. Commitments and Contingencies 

Contingent Liabilities: The Company sells 1-4 family residential loans under a program with FHLB of Boston, the Mortgage 
Partnership Finance program. Under this program the Company shares in the credit risk of each mortgage, while receiving 
fee income in return, The Company is responsible for a Credit Enhancement Obligation (CEO) based on the credit quality of 
these loans. FHLB of Boston funds a First Loss Account (FLA) based on the Company's outstanding MPF mortgage balances. 
This creates a laddered approach to sharing in any losses. In the event of default, homeowner's equity and Private Mortgage 
Insurance, if any, are the flrst sources of repayment; the FHLB of Boston's FLA funds are then utilized, followed by the 
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member's CEO, with the balance the responsibility of FHLB of Boston. These loans meet specific underwriting standards of 
the FHLB of Boston. As of December 31, 2009, the Company had $4,984,317, in loans sold through the MPF program. The 
volume of loans sold to the MPF program and the corresponding credit obligafion are closely monitored by management. 
Asof December 31, 2009, the notional amount of the maximum contingent contractual liability related to this program was 
$91,625 of which $5,483 has been recorded as a reserve through Other liabilities. 

Legal Contingencies: In the normal course of business, the Company is involved in various legal and other proceedings. In 
the opinion of management, after consulting with the Company's legal counsel, any liability resulfing from such proceedings 
would not have a material adverse effect on the Company's flnancial statements. 

Note 18. Fair Value Measurements 

The following is a descripfion ofthe valuation methodologies used forthe Company's financial assets that are measured on 
a recurring basis at estimated fair value: 

Investment securities available-for-sale: Certain corporate debt securifies, marketable equity securifies and 
mutual funds have been valued using unadjusted quoted prices from acfive markets and therefore have been 
classifled as level 1. However, the majority ofthe Company's investment securifies available-for-sale have been 
valued utilizing level 2 inputs. For these securifies, the Company obtains fair value measurements from an 
independent pricing service. The fair value measurements consider observable data that may include market 
maker bids, quotes and pricing models. Inputs to the pricing models include recent trades, benchmark interest 
rates, spreads and actual and projected cash flows. 

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2009 and 2008, segregated by fair value hierarchy level, 
are summarized below: 

Fair Value Measurements 

Fair Value 

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets for 

Identical Assets 
(Level 1) 

December 31, 2009: 
Investment securifies available-for-sale 

Debt Securities: 
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises 
Mortgage-backed 
State and political subdivisions 
Corporate 

Total debt securifies 
Marketable equity securities 
Mutual funds 

Total 

$ 4,453,778 
4,859,701 
7,686,219 

Significant 
Significant Other Unobservable 

Observable Inputs Inputs 
(Level 2) (Level 3) 

$ 4,453,778 
4,859,701 
7,685,219 

7,523,137 

24,522,835 
43,726 
82,028 

$24,648,589 

5,279,498 

5,279,498 
43,726 
82,028 

$5,405,252 

2,243,639 

19,243,337 

$ 19,243,337 $ 

— 

— 

-
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Fair Value Measurements 

Fair Value 

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets for 

Identical Assets 
(Level 1) 

Significant Other 
Observable Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

$ 1,532,748 
9,274,630 
7,479,531 

1,532,748 
9,274,630 
7,479,531 

9,485,515 

27,773,524 
9,000 

51,860 

$27,834,384 

7,168,514 

7,158,514 
9,000 

51,860 

$7,229,374 

2,318,101 

20,505,010 

$ 20,605,010 $ 

— 

— 

-

December 31, 2008: 
Investment securities available-for-sale 

Debt Securities: 
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises 
Mortgage-backed 
State and political subdivisions 
Corporate 

Total debt securities 
Marketable equity securities 
Mutual funds 

Total 

Certain other assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, that is, the instruments are not 
measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances (for example, 
when there is evidence of impairment). Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis such as other 
real estate owned, impaired loans and mortgage servicing rights were not significant at December 31, 2009 or 2008. The 
Company has not elected to apply the fair value option to any financial assets or liabilities other than those situations 
where other accounting pronouncements require fair value measurements. 

FASB ASC Topic 825, "Financial Instruments", requires disclosure of the estimated fair value of financial instruments. Fair 
value is best determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in many instances, there are no quoted market prices 
for the Company's various financial instruments. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are 
based on esfimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the 
assumpfions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Management's estimates and assumptions 
are inherently subjective and involve uncertainties and matters of signiflcant judgment. Changes in assumpfions could 
dramafically affect the esfimated fair values. 

Accordingly, the fairvalue estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement ofthe instrument. Certain financial 
instruments and all nonfinancial instruments may be excluded from disclosure requirements. Thus, the aggregate fair value 
amounts presented may not necessarily represent the actual underlying fair value of such instruments of the Company 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial 
instruments: 

Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash and cash equivalents 
approximate those assets' fair values. 

Interest bearing deposits in banks: Fair values for interest bearing deposits in banks are based on discounted present 
values of cash flows. 

Investment securities: Fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market prices, where available. If 
quoted market prices are not available, fair value measurements consider observable data that may include market 
maker bids, quotes and pricing models. Inputs to the pricing models include recent trades, benchmark interest rates, 
spreads and actual and projected cash flows. 

Loans and loans held for sale: Fair values of loans are estimated for portfolios of loans with similar flnancial 
characteristics and segregated by loan type. For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no signiflcant 
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Note 18. Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 

change in credit risk, fair values are based on carrying amounts. The fair values for other loans (for example, flxed-
rate residential, commercial real estate, and rental property mortgage loans, and commercial and industrial loans) 
are esfimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based on interest rates currently being offered for loans with 
similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality Loan fair value estimates include judgments regarding future 
cash flows, future expected loss experience and risk characteristics. The carrying amounts reported in the balance 
sheet for loans that are held for sale approximate their fair values. Fair values for impaired loans are estimated using 
discounted cash flow analyses or underlying collateral values, where applicable. 

Deposits: The fair values disclosed for demand deposits or nonmaturity deposits (for example, checking and savings 
accounts) are, by deflnition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporfing date (that is, their carrying 
amounts). The carrying amounts of variable-rate fime deposits approximate their fair values at the reporting date. 
The fair values for fixed-rate time deposits are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies 
interest rates currently being offered on time deposits to a schedule of aggregated contractual maturities on such 
time deposits. 

Sorrowed/a/ids; The fair values of the Company's long-term debt are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis 
based on interest rates currently being offered on similar debt instruments. The fair values of the Company's short-
term debt approximate the carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet. 

Accrued interest receivable and payable: The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate their fair values. 

FHLB of Boston stock: The carrying amount approximates its fair value. 

Off-balance-sheet financial instruments: Fair values for off-balance-sheet, credit-related flnancial instruments are 
based on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the 
agreements and the counterparties' credit standing. The only commitments to extend credit that are normally 
longer than one year in duration are the Home Equity Lines whose interest rates are variable quarterly. The only fees 
collected for commitments are an annual fee on credit card arrangements and often a flat fee on commercial lines of 
credit and standby letters of credit. The fair value of off-balance-sheet financial instruments is not significant. 

The estimated fair values and related carrying amounts of the Company's significant financial instruments at December 31, 
were as follows: 

2009 2008 

Carrying 
Amount 

$ 22,132,137 
22,974,800 
24,548,589 

354,574,193 
1,534,095 
1,922,000 

$368,827,137 
30,992,604 

555,251 

Estimated 
Fair Value 

$ 22,132,137 
23,345,236 
24,548,589 

345,795,679 
1,534,095 
1,922,000 

$369,500,376 
35,584,266 

556,251 

Carrying 
Amount 

$ 25,329,708 
14,789,173 
27,834,384 

349,753,671 
1,938,563 
1,922,000 

$364,359,728 
27,416,262 

788,487 

Estimated 
FairValue 

$ 26,329,708 
15,228,865 
27,834,384 

367,084,480 
1,938,553 
1,922,000 

$365,457,860 
34,570,017 

788,487 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Interest bearing deposits in banks 
Investment securifies available-for-sale 
Loans and loans held for sale, net 
Accrued interest receivable 
FHLB of Boston stock 

Financial liabilifies 
Deposits 
Borrowed funds 
Accrued interest payable 

The carrying amounts in the preceding table are included in the balance sheet under the applicable captions. 
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Note 19. Transactions with Related Parties 

The Company has had, and may be expected to have in the future, banking transactions in the ordinary course of business 
with principal stockholders, directors, principal officers, their immediate families and afflliated companies in which they are 
principal stockholders (commonly referred to as related parties), all ofwhich have been, in the opinion of management, 
on the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with 
unrelated parties and which do not represent more than the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable 
features. 

Aggregate loan transactions with related parties for the years ended December 31, were as follows: 

2009 2008 

Balance, beginning 
New loans and advances on lines 
Repayments 

Other, net 

Balance, ending 

Balance available on lines of credit or loan commitments 

$ 1,443,260 
2,435,455 

(1,521,772) 
(328,573) 

$ 1,339,078 
1,960,411 

(1,879,629) 
23,400 

$ 1,928,270 $ 1,443,260 

$ 591,545 $ 523,850 

Noneof these loans are past due, are in nonaccrual or have been restructured to provide a reduction or deferral oflnterest 
or principal because of deterioration in the flnancial position of the borrower. There were no loans to a related party that 
were considered classified loans at December 31, 2009 or 2008. 

Deposit accounts with related parties were $1,434,823 and $1,891,300 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively The 
Union Bank Defined Benefit Pension Plan also invested $225,591 and $0 respecfively in FDIC insured certificates of deposit 
and had an operating demand deposit account with Union totalling $22,304 and $22,245 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively. 

Note 20. Regulatory Capital Requirements 

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and Union are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by 
the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory - and possibly 
additional discretionary - acfions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company's 
and Union's flnancial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective 
action, the Company and Union must meet speciflc capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, 
and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company's and Union's capital 
amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, 
and other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and Union to maintain 
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier I capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-
weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital (as deflned) to average assets (as defined). Management believes that, 
as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company and Union met all capital adequacy requirements to which they were 
subject. 

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the most recent notification from the FDIC categorized Union as well capitalized under 
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized an institution must maintain 
minimum total risk based. Tier I risk based, and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the table below. There are no conditions 
or events since the date of the most recent notification that management believes might result in an adverse change to 
Union's regulatory capital category. 
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Note 20. Regulatory Capital Requirements (Continued) 

Union's and the Company's actual capital amounts (OOO's omitted) and ratios are presented in the following tables: 

Actual 

Minimum 
For Capital 

Requirement 

Minimum 
To be Well 

Capitalized Under 
Prompt Corrective 
Action Provisions 

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 

As of December 31, 2009: 
Total capital to risk weighted assets 

Union 
Company 

Tier I capital to risk weighted assets 
Union 
Company 

Tier I capital to average assets 
Union 
Company 

$46,152 
46,322 

$42,659 
42,829 

$42,659 
42,829 

15.3% 
15.3% 

14,1% 
14.1% 

9.7% 
9.7% 

$24,195 
24,268 

$12,050 
12,133 

$17,555 
17,589 

8.0% 
8.0% 

4.0% 
4.0% 

4.0% 
4.0% 

$30,244 
N/A 

$18,153 
N/A 

$21,944 
N/A 

10.0% 
N/A 

5.0% 
N/A 

5.0% 
N/A 

Actual 

Minimum 
For Capital 

Requirement 

Minimum 
To be Well 

Capitalized Under 
Prompt Corrective 
Action Provisions 

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 

Asof December 31, 2008: 
Total capital to risk weighted assets 

Union 
Company 

Tier I capital to risk weighted assets 
Union 
Company 

Tier I capital to average assets 
Union 
Company 

$45,799 
45,973 

$42,243 
42,417 

$42,243 
42,417 

15.3% 
15.3% 

14.1% 
14.2% 

10.0% 
9.9% 

$23,916 
23,976 

$11,958 
11,991 

$16,982 
17,225 

8.0% 
8.0% 

4.0% 
4.0% 

4.0% 
4.0% 

$29,895 
N/A 

$17,938 
N/A 

$21,228 
N/A 

10.0% 
N/A 

6.0% 
N/A 

5.0% 
N/A 

Dividends paid by Union are the primary source of funds available to the Company for payment of dividends to its 
shareholders. Union is subject to certain requirements imposed by federal banking laws and regulations, which among 
other things, establish minimum levels of capital and restrict the amount of dividends that may be distributed by Union to 
the Company. 

Note 21. Treasury Stock 

The basis for the carrying value ofthe Company's treasury stock is the purchase price of the shares at the time of purchase. 
In 2005, the Company adopted a Stock Repurchase Program providing for the repurchase of up to $2.15 million or 100,000 
shares of its common stock in open market or privately negotiated transactions. 

During 2009 under the authorized purchase program, the Company repurchased 13,390 shares of its common stock at 
prices ranging from $14.89 to $19.99 per share, for a total of $223,822, and in 2008 repurchased 28,371 shares at prices 
ranging from $17.65 to $21.31 per share for a total of $551,075. 
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Note 22. Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

The following is a summary of the components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31: 

2009 2008 

(169,980) 

Investment securities available-for-sale: 
Net unrealized holding gains (losses) on investment 
securities available-for-sale, net of tax of $317,985 
and $(213,792) $ 517,265 

Reclassiflcation adjustment for net (gains) losses 
on investment securities available-for-sale realized 
in net income, net of tax of $(87,555) and $168,427 

Total 
Defined benefit pension plan: 

Net unrealized actuarial gain (loss), net of tax of $492,722 
and $(1,226,078) 

Reclassification adjustment for amortization of net actuarial 
loss, realized in net income, net of tax of $107,515 and $9,517 

Reclassification adjustment for amortization of prior service 
cost, realized in net income, net of tax of $2,094 and $2,092 

Total 
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax at December 31, are: 

$ (415,008) 

325,945 
447,285 

956,459 

208,599 

4,064 

1,159,222 

$ 1,616,507 

(88,052) 

(2,380,039) 

18,473 

4,056 

(2,357,500) 

$(2,445,562) 

2009 2008 

Net unrealized gain (loss) on investment securifies available-for-sale 
Defined benefit pension plan: 

Net unrealized actuarial loss 

Net unrealized prior service cost 

Total 

Note 23. Subsequent Events 

$ 358,812 

(1,997,177) 
(14,712) 

$ (88,473) 

(3,152,335) 
(18,775) 

$(1,653,077) $(3,269,584) 

Subsequent events represent events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date but before the flnancial 
statements are issued. Financial statements are considered "issued" when they are widely distributed to shareholders and 
others for general use and reliance in a form and format that complies with GAAP 

Specifically there are two types of subsequent events: 
• Those comprising events or transacfions providing addifional evidence about conditions that existed at the 

balance sheet date, including estimates inherent in the financial statement preparation process (referred to as 
recognized subsequent events). 

• Those comprising events that provide evidence about condifions not exisfing at the balance sheet date but, 
rather, that arose after such date (referred to as nonrecognized subsequent events). 

On January 20, 2010, Union Bankshares, Inc. declared a $0.25 per share regular quarterly cash dividend payable 
February 11, 2010 to stockholders of record on January 30, 2010. 
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Note 24. Condensed Financial Information (Parent Company Only) 

The following condensed financial statements are for Union Bankshares, Inc. (Parent Company Only), and should be read in 
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of Union Bankshares, Inc. and Subsidiary. 

UNION BANKSHARES, INC. (PARENT COMPANY ONLY) 
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS 
DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008 

2009 

; 152,548 
90,909 

41,009,824 
695,540 

$ 41,949,021 

769,411 

2008 

$ 206,304 
39,691 

38,975,310 
659,450 

$39,881,755 

731,672 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Investment securifies available-for-sale 
Investment in subsidiary - Union 
Other assets 

Total assets 

UABIUTIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

UABILITIES 
Other liabilifies 

Total liabilities 
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Common stock, $2.00 par value; 7,500,000 shares 
authorized; 4,921,786 shares issued at 
December 31, 2009 and 2008 

Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Treasury stock at cost; 450,578 and 447,188 shares at 

December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Total stockholders' equity 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 

The investment in the subsidiary bank is carried under the equity method of accounting. The investment and cash, which is 
on deposit with Union, have been eliminated in consolidation. 

759,411 

9,843,572 

219,331 

36,494,110 

(3,724,326) 

(1,553,077) 

41,179,510 

$ 41,949,021 

731,572 

9,843,572 

207,583 

35,868,916 

(3,500,504) 

(3,269,584) 

39,150,083 

$39,881,755 
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Note 24. Condensed Financial Information (Parent Company Only) (Continued) 

UNION BANKSHARES, INC. (PARENT COMPANY ONLY) 
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008 

Revenues 
Dividends - bank subsidiary - Union 
Other income 

Total revenues 

Expenses 
Interest 
Administrative and other 

Total expenses 

Income before applicable income tax benefit and equity in undistributed 

net income (excess of dividends over net income) of subsidiary 

Applicable income tax benefit 

Income before equity in undistributed net income (excess of dividends over 
net income) of subsidiary 

Equity in undistributed net income (excess of dividends over net income) - Union 
Net income 

UNION BANKSHARES, INC. (PARENT COMPANY ONLY) 
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
(Equity in undistributed net income) excess of dividends 
over net income of Union 

Stock based compensation expense 
Decrease (increase) in other assets 
Increase in other liabilifies 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchases of investment securities available-for-sale 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Dividends paid 
Purchase of treasury stock 

Net cash used in flnancing activities 

Net decrease in cash 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 

Beginning of year 

End of year 

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
Interest paid 

Income taxes paid 

2009 

$5,025,000 

22,891 

5,047,891 

22,545 

328,964 

351,509 

4,696,382 

(113,490) 

4,809,872 

416,695 

$5,225,558 

2008 

$5,450,000 

49,829 

5,499,829 

2,822 

338,310 

341,132 

5,158,597 

(112,490) 

5,271,187 

(155,057) 

$5,106,120 

2009 2008 

$5,226,568 $5,106,120 

416,696) 

11,548 

(35,032) 

37,739 

165,057 

5,282 

8,118 

23,086 

4,823,227 

(51,687) 

(4,501,374) 

(223,822) 

(4,825,196) 

(53,656) 

206,304 

$ 152,648 

$ 22,545 

$ 250 

5,307,673 

(24,187) 

(5,028,720) 

(561,075) 

(5,589,795) 

(305,309) 

512,513 

$ 206,304 

$ 2,822 

$ 250 
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Note 25. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 

A summary of flnancial data for each of the four quarters of 2009 and 2008 is presented below (dollars in thousands): 

Interest income 
Interestexpense 
Net interest income 
Provision for loan losses 
Noninterest income 
Noninterest expenses 
Net income 
Earnings per common share 

Interest income 
Interest expense 
Net interest income 
Provision for loan losses 
Noninterest income 
Noninterest expenses 
Net income 
Earnings per common share 

Quarters in 2009 Ended 

March 31, 

$ 5,850 
1,488 
4,362 

95 
1,351 
3,990 
1,267 

$ 0.28 

March 31, 

$ 6,264 
1,924 
4,340 

50 
1,138 
3,845 
1,405 

$ 0.31 

June 30, 

$ 5,813 
1,358 
4,455 

75 
1,272 
4,156 
1,235 

$ 0.28 

Quarters in 

June 30, 

$ 5,095 
1,777 
4,318 

90 
1,175 
3,935 
1,190 

$ 0.27 

Sept. 30, 

$ 5,848 
1,277 
4,571 

75 
1,509 
4,134 
1,445 

$ 0.32 

2008 Ended 

Sept. 30, 

$ 6,204 
1,790 
4,414 

45 
848 

3,854 
1,165 

$ 0.25 

Dec. 31, 

$ 5,706 
1,171 
4,535 

155 
1,389 
4,117 
1,280 

$ 0.29 

Dec. 31 , 

$ 6,158 
1,685 
4,472 

150 
1,158 
3,777 
1,345 

$ 0.30 

Page 46 • Union Bankshares, Inc. 2009 Annual Report 



Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations 

GENERAL 

The following discussion and analysis by Management focuses on those factors that had a material effect on the financial 
position of Union Bankshares, Inc. (the Company) as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and its results of operafions for 
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. This discussion is being presented to provide a narrafive explanation of 
the consolidated financial statements and should be read in conjuncfion with the financial statements and related notes 
and with other financial data in the Company's annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009. The 
purpose ofthis presentafion is to enhance overall financial disclosures and to provide informafion about historical finan
cial performance and developing trends as a means to assess to what extent past performance can be used to evaluate 
the prospects for future performance. The Company meets the qualiflcafion requirements under Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC) rules for smaller reporfing companies, and pursuant to such rules, has elected to present audited state
ments of income, cash flows and changes in stockholders' equity for each of the preceding two, rather than three, fiscal 
years. Management is not aware of the occurrence of any events after December 31, 2009, which would materially affect 
the informafion presented. 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

The Company may from time-to-time make written or oral statements that are considered "forward-looking statements" 
within the meaning of the Private Securifies Lifigafion Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements may include finan
cial projecfions, statements of plans and objecfives for future operafions, esfimates of future economic performance or 
condifions and assumpfions relafing thereto. The Company may include forward-looking statements in its filings with the 
SEC, in its reports to stockholders, including this Annual Report, in press releases, other written materials, and in state
ments made by senior management to analysts, rafing agencies, institutional investors, representatives of the media and 
others. 

Forward-looking statements reflect management's current expectations and are subject to uncertainties, both general 
and speciflc, and risk exists that actual results will differ from those predictions, forecasts, projections and other estimates 
contained in forward-looking statements. These risks cannot be readily quantified. When management uses any of the 
words "believes," "expects," "anticipates," "intends," "projects," "plans," "seeks," "estimates" or similar expressions, they 
are making forward-looking statements. Many possible events or factors, including those beyond the control of manage
ment, could affect the future financial results and performanceof the Company. This could cause results or performance to 
differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements. The possible events or factors that might affect 
the forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, the following: 

• uses of monetary, fiscal and tax policy by various governments including measures taken by the Federal government to 
stimulate the economy; 

• political, legislative or regulatory developments in Vermont, New Hampshire or the United States, including changes in 
laws concerning accounting, taxes, financial reporting, consumer protection, banking and other aspects of the financial 
services industry; 

• disruptions in U.S. and global financial and credit markets; 
• developments in general economic or business conditions globally, nationally, in Vermont, or in northwestern New 

Hampshire, including interest rate fluctuations, market fluctuations and perceptions, job creation and unemployment 
rates, ability to attract new business, and inflation or deflation and their effects on the Company or its customers; 

• the creditworthiness of current loan customers is different from management's understanding or changes dramatically 
and therefore the allowance for loan losses becomes inadequate; 

• the failure of assumptions underlying the establishment of the allowance for loan losses and estimations of values of 
collateral and various flnancial assets and liabilities; 

• adverse changes in the local real estate market, which negatively impact collateral values and the Company's ability to 
recoup loan losses through disposition of real estate collateral; 

• changes in the competifive environment for financial services organizations, including expanded powers and increased 
competition from tax-advantaged credit unions, mutual banks and out-of-market competitors offering flnancial services 
overthe internet; 

• impact of governmental interposition in financial services or other industries; 
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acts or threats of terrorism or war and acfions taken by the United States or other governments that might adversely 
affect business or economic conditions for the Company or its customers; 
the Company's ability to attract and retain key personnel; 
changes in technology, including demands for greater automation which could present operational issues or require 
significant capital outiays; 
unanticipated lower revenues or increased cost of funds, loss of customers or business, or higher operating expenses; 
uncontrollable increase in the cost of doing business, such as increased costs of FDIC insurance for deposits and higher 
taxes or assessments by regulatory bodies; 
adverse changes in the securities market generally or in the market for financial insfi'tution securities which could ad
versely affect the value ofthe Company's stock; 
the failure of actuarial, investment, work force, salary and other assumptions underlying the establishment of reserves 
for future pension costs or changes in legislative or regulatory requirements affecfing such costs; 
the amount invested in new business opportunities and the timing of these investments; 
future cash requirements might be higher than anticipated due to loan commitments or unused lines of credit being 
drawn upon or depositors withdrawing their funds; 
assumptions made regarding interest rate movement and sensitivity could vary substantially if actual experience differs 
from historical experience, which could adversely affect the Company's results of operations; 
the Company's ability to attract and retain deposits and loans; 
the implementation of international financial reporfing standards (IFRS) for United States companies; 
illegal acts of theft or fraud perpetuated against the Company's subsidiary bank or its customers; 
any actual or alleged conduct which could harm the Company's reputation; 
natural or other disasters which could affect the ability of the Company to operate under normal conditions; and 
further expansion of fair value accounfing or disclosure. 

When evaluating forward-looking statements to make decisions with respect to the Company, investors and others are 
cautioned to consider these and other risks and uncertainties, including the events and circumstances discussed under 
"Recent Developments" below, and are reminded not to place undue reliance on such statements. Forward-looking state
ments speak only as of the date they are made and the Company undertakes no obligation to update them to reflect new 
or changed information or events, except as may be required by federal securities laws. 

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS 

The U.S. and global economies have experienced signiflcant stress and disruptions in the financial sector over the last 
eighteen months but are showing signs of stabilization. Interest rates remain at historic lows, bank failures are higher than 
they have been in over 15 years, the FDIC has collected three years of prepaid assessments from the remaining banks and 
the amount of government dollars pumped into the financial system is unprecedented. Dramatic slowdowns in the hous
ing industry with falling home prices, continuing foreclosures and the high unemployment rate have resulted in significant 
problems for some financial institutions, including government-sponsored entities and investment banks. These problems 
have caused many financial institutions to seek additional capital, to merge with larger and stronger institutions and, in 
some cases, to fail. Economic instability progressed to many other business and government sectors and has affected the 
majority of consumers as well. Tough decisions face our elected representatives, local municipal governments and busi
nesses as the recession continues and the question of how to recover from the deficit situation without making the current 
recession worse is on everybody's mind. 

Despite the volatile economy, Vermont continues to have the lowest residential foreclosure rate in the country with 143 
foreclosures in 2009, but the pace of foreclosures did increase 4.4% in 2009 from 2008. Also, as northern New England had 
not experienced the dramatic run up in housing prices, likewise, we have not seen the values drop as far as other parts of 
the country. 

In response to the financial crisis affecting the banking and financial markets, many new laws, regulations and programs 
have been adopted or proposed. We will not attempt to discuss them all within this annual report but will mention the ones 
that continue or will have a known financial impact on the Company. 
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The requirement under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the preparafion and inclusion in a nonaccelerated filer's annual report 
of an independent audifior's attestation regarding the effectiveness of the company's internal controls over financial re
porfing was again delayed from an effective date of 2009 to 2010. There is currently a federal legislative proposal to elimi
nate that requirement completely for community banks. 

In October 2008, the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (the EESA) was signed into law. Pursuant to the EESA, 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation temporarily increased the deposit insurance coverage limits to $250,000 per 
ownership category at each insured financial institution. That coverage has been extended until December 31, 2013. 

In 2008, after receiving a recommendation from the boards ofthe Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the FDIC) and the 
Federal Reserve System (the Federal Reserve), the U.S. Department of the Treasury (U.S. Treasury) signed the systemic risk 
exception to the FDIC Act, enabling the FDIC to temporarily provide a 100% guarantee on deposits in noninterest bearing 
transaction deposit accounts under a Temporary Uquidity Guarantee Program (the TLGP). Coverage under the Temporary 
Liquidity Guarantee Program was available for 30 days without charge and for calendar year 2009 at a cost of 10 basis 
points per annum for noninterest bearing transaction deposits in excess ofthe $250,000 insured deposit limit. The program 
has been extended until June 30, 2010 at a cost of 15 basis points per annum and the Company is continuing its participa
fion in this program through that date. 

The Company decided it was not in the best interest of the Company or its shareholders to participate in any of the other 
governmental programs available under the Troubled Asset Purchase Program given the strength of the Company's capital 
position, the nature of the government restrictions with the possibility of addifional restricfions in the future, the fact that 
the Company did not target sub-prime borrowers and the fact that the Company is able to meet the lending and withdrawal 
needs of our customers with our available funding sources. (For additional information, see Capital Resources on page 79.) 

Union Bank is participating in the U.S. Small Business Administration's (SBA) temporary America's Recovery Capital (ARC) 
program which offers interest-free loans of up to $35,000 to viable small businesses. These loans carry a 100% guaranty 
from the SBA to the lender and require no fees paid to the SBA. The program pays participating lenders a market rate of 
interest while the ARC loans are outstanding. 

The cost of doing business as usual has increased dramatically in this regulatory environment as the number and extent 
of new regulations and the speed with which they must be implemented have put a strain on software providers and staff 
as well as customers. Also, the costs of mitigating long term interest rate risk by selling loans to the secondary market has 
increased dramatically during 2009 and it is anticipated that this cost will confinue to grow as the government sponsored 
enfifies continue to work through their own flnancial problems. There have also been many new regulations adopted that 
limit the type and amount of fees that may be imposed, which will also have a future negafive impact on community banks 
which did not create the economic problems but will be a big part ofthe solution. 

In addition, as a result of the weakness of certain financial institutions, the FDIC has taken action that has and will result in 
increased future FDIC insurance assessments for United States FDIC-insured financial insfitufions, including Union. Under 
the deposit insurance restoration plan approved by the FDIC in October 2008, the Board set a rate schedule to raise the 
insurance reserve rafio to 1.15 percent within five years. In February 2009, the FDIC announced that the restorafion plan 
horizon has been extended to seven years in light ofthe current significant strains on banks and the financial system and 
the likelihood of a severe recession and in September 2009, the plan horizon was extended again to eight years. In addition, 
the FDIC levied a special assessment of 5 basis points assessed on total assets less Tier 1 capital at June 30, 2009 and col
lected on September 30, 2009. The special assessment added $191 thousand in noninterest expense for the third quarter 
and the year 2009. The FDIC may also impose another emergency special assessment if the FDIC deems that an additional 
special assessment is necessary to maintain public confidence in federal deposit insurance. The Company's total FDIC insur
ance expense for 2009 was $684 thousand compared to $87 thousand for 2008 or a 686% increase, while average deposits 
only grew 7.9% between years. Based on the FDIC insurance premium schedule for 2010, we anficipate our assessment 
expense to be $485 thousand for 2010 compared to $684 thousand for 2009, unless another special assessment is levied, 
addifional rate increases are imposed during 2010, or deposit levels differ significantly from our forecast. Banks were re
quired to prepay an estimated three year assessment to the FDIC on December 30, 2009, which resulted in the Company 
recording a $1.8 million nonearning asset classified in Other assets at December 31, 2009. The FDIC has also announced 
that it will increase its current assessment rate by three basis points effecfive January 1, 2011 which will increase the Com
pany's future costs. 
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Union is a member of FHLB of Boston with an investment of $1.9 million in its Class B common stock. The FHLB system is 
a cooperative that provides services to member banking insfitufions. The primary reason for joining the FHLB is to obtain 
funding from the FHLB. FHLB stock is an activity based stock that is directly proportional to the volume of funding. FHLB 
stock is bought and redeemed at par value. The FHLB of Boston adopted a revised retained earnings target, a repurchase 
moratorium on their Class B common stock, and a quarterly dividend payout restriction under their 2009 capital plan. 
These decisions will most likely limit the level of funds available under certain FHLB of Boston programs, affect the pricing 
of other programs and have impacted the amount of dividends received by Union on its Class B common stock investment, 
which dropped from $63 thousand in 2008 to $0 in 2009. 

It is not completely clear at this time what impact current or future government sponsored programs, regulations or legisla
tion will have on the Company, its customers or the U.S. and global financial markets but there are a number of proposals 
pending that if or when enacted could have a future impact on the Company's operating environment. Among those that 
might have a future impact are a change in supervisory regulators, the formation ofa new federal regulator in the form ofa 
consumer flnancial protection agency, rules related to the Credit Card Act, overdraft rules for Debit and ATM cards, health
care reform, mortgage bankruptcy cram down, Sarbanes-Oxley reform, increase in regulatory capital levels, addifional fair 
value accounfing requirements or a merger of U.S. GAAP accounting and international financial reporting standards. In 
February, 2010 the Obama Administration called on Congress to create a new small business lending fund under which $30 
billion in Troubled Asset Relief Program (TARP) funds would be transferred to a new program outside of TARP to support 
small business lending by small and medium size banks. These pending proposals will continue to be monitored and evalu
ated by Company's management. 

RISK FACTORS 

The Company, like other flnancial insfitufions, is subject to a number of risks, many of which are outside of the Company's 
direct control, though efforts are made to manage those risks while optimizing returns. Managing those risks is an essen
tial part of successfully managing a financial insfitufion. Risk identification and monitoring are key elements in overall risk 
management. Among the risks assumed are: (1) credit risk, which is the risk that loan customers or other counter parties 
will be unable to perform their contractual obligations, (2) market risk, which is the risk that changes in market rates and 
prices will adversely affect the Company's financial condition or results of operation, (3) liquidity risk, which is the risk 
that the Company will have insufficient funds or access to funds to meet operafional needs, (4) operational risk, which is 
the risk of loss resulfing from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external events, and 
(5) regulatory risk, which is the risk of loss resulfing from new or changing regulations which increases operafing cost or 
restricts business practices. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Company has established various accounting policies which govern the application of accounting principles generally 
accepted (GAAP) inthe United States of America inthe preparation of the Company's financial statements. Certain account
ing policies involve significant judgments and assumptions by management which have a material impact on the reported 
amount of assets, liabilities, capital, revenues and expenses and related disclosures of confingent assets and liabilifies in 
the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. The SEC has defined a company's critical accounting poli
cies astheones that are most important to the portrayal of the company's financial condifion and results of operations, and 
which require the company to make its most difficult and subjective judgments, often as a result of the need to make esti
mates of matters that are inherently uncertain. Based on this definition, the Company has idenfified the accounting policies 
and judgments most critical to the Company. The judgments and assumptions used by management are based on historical 
experience and other factors, which are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Because of the nature of the 
judgments and assumptions made by management, actual results could differ from estimates and have a material impact 
on the carrying value of assets, liabilities, capital, or the results of operations of the Company. 

The Company believes the allowance for loan losses is a critical accounting policy that requires the most significant judg
ments and estimates used in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements. Adequacy of the allowance for loan 
losses is determined quarterly using a consistent, systematic methodology, which analyzes the risk inherent in the loan 
portfolio. In addition to evaluating the collectability of specific loans when determining the adequacy of the allowance. 
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management also takes into consideration other factors such as changes in the mix and size ofthe loan portfolio, historical 
loss experience, the amount of delinquencies and loans adversely classified, industry trends, and the impact of the local 
and regional economy on the Company's borrowers. Changes in these factors may cause management's esfimate of the 
allowance for loan losses to increase or decrease and result in adjustments to the Company's provision for loan losses in 
future periods. 

Given the disrupfions in the financial markets over the last eighteen months, the decision to recognize other-than-tem
porary impairment on investment securities available-for-sale has become more difficult as complete information is not 
always available and market conditions and other relevant factors are subject to rapid changes. The other-than-temporary 
impairment decision has become a critical accounting policy for the Company. Accounting guidance requires companies to 
perform periodic reviews of individual securities in their investment portfolios to determine whether a decline in the value 
of a security is other-than-temporary. A review of other-than-temporary impairment requires companies to make certain 
judgments regarding the cause and materiality of the decline, its effect on the financial statements and the probability, ex
tent and timing of a valuation recovery, the company's intent and ability to continue to hold the security, and, with respect 
to debt securities, the likelihood that the company will have to sell the security before its value recovers. Pursuant to these 
requirements, management assesses valuation declines to determine the extent to which such changes are attributable to 
(1) fundamental factors specific to the issuer, such asthe nature of the issuer and its financial condifion, business prospects 
or other factors or (2) market-related factors, such as interest rates or equity market declines. Declines in the fair value 
of securifies below their costs that are deemed by management to be other-than-temporary are (1) if equity securifies, 
recorded in earnings as realized losses and (2) if debt securifies, recorded in earnings as realized losses to the extent they 
are deemed credit losses, with noncredit losses recorded in Other comprehensive income. Once an other-than-temporary 
loss on a debt or equity security is realized, subsequent gains in the value ofthe security may not be recognized in income 
until the security is sold. 

The Company's pension benefit obligations and net periodic benefit cost are actuarially determined based on the follow
ing assumptions: discount rate, current and estimated future return on plan assets, wage base rate, anticipated mortality 
rates. Consumer Price Index rate, and rate of increase in compensafion levels. The determination ofthe pension benefit 
obligations and net periodic benefit cost is a critical accounting estimate as it requires the use of estimates and judgments 
related to the amount and timing of expected future cash outflows for benefit payments and cash inflows for maturities 
and returns on plan assets as well as Company contributions. Changes in estimates, assumptions and actual results could 
have a material impact to the Company's flnancial condition or results of operations. 

The Company also has other key accounting policies, which involve the use of esfimates, judgments and assumpfions, that 
are significant to understanding the results including the valuafion of deferred tax assets, investment securities and other 
real estate owned. The most significant accounfing policies followed by the Company are presented in Note 1 to the finan
cial statements and in the section below under the caption "FINANCIAL CONDITION" and the subcapfions "Allowance for 
Loan Losses", "Investment Activities" and "Liability for Pension Benefits". Although management believes that its estimates, 
assumptions and judgments are reasonable, they are based upon information presently available and can be impacted by 
events outside the control ofthe Company. Actual results may differ significantly from these estimates under different as
sumptions, judgments or conditions. 

OVERVIEW 

The Federal Reserve discount rate and the prime rate dropped 500 basis points from 8.25% between September 2007 to 
December 2008, resulfing in a discount rate of 0.50% and a prime rate of 3.25% throughout 2009. This is the lowest that 
the prime rate has been since 1955. The combinafion ofthe low interest rates and the turmoil in the financial markets over 
the last eighteen months has added to the challenging environment in which the Company and its sole subsidiary. Union, 
operates. A regulatory review of Union was recently safisfactorily completed during the fourth quarter of 2009. 

The Company's asset quality remained strong compared to the banking industry as a whole at the present time, when 
measured by net charge-offs of 0.13% to average loans not held forsale in 2009, but was up slightly for the Company from 
2008. Net income is up $120 thousand, or 2.4%, to $5.23 million for 2009 from $5.11 million for 2008. Earnings are still 
solid and above the peer group average with a return on average assets of 1.21% and a return on average equity of 13.29% 
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for 2009. The Company also out-performed the SNL Bank $250 million-$500 million index for 2009 and over the last five 
years has had a steadier total return performance than either the NASDAQ Composite or the SNL Bank $250 million-$500 
million indicies. 

Earnings per share increased to $1.17 in 2009 from $1.14 in 2008. Dividends per share of $1.00 were paid out in 2009 and 
$1.12 in 2008. The Company remained well capitalized under regulatory guidelines after payment of dividends. In 2005, 
the Board of Directors approved a Stock Repurchase Program authorizing the repurchase of up to $2.15 million or up to 
100,000 shares of the Company's common stock. During 2009, the Company repurchased 13,390 shares of the Company's 
common stock pursuant to that authority totaling $224 thousand. See Note 21 to the financial statements for additional 
information. 

Historically, the largest and most variable source of income for the Company is net interest income. The results of opera
tions for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 reflect the impact of changes in rates as well as growth in the vol
ume and change in composition of both interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities during these periods. 

The Company's assets continued to grow during 2009 to an average of $433 million from $406 million in 2008. Net interest 
income increased from $17.54 million in 2008 to $17.92 million in 2009. The net $378 thousand increase resulted from 
two factors; (1) a decrease between years of $649 thousand due to the cumulative effect of the decrease in rates earned 
on interest earning assets over and above the decrease in rates paid on interest bearing liabilities, and (2) an increase of 
$1.0 million between years due to the increased volume of interest earning assets over and above the increased volume of 
interest bearing liabilities. See Yields Earned and Rates Paid and the Rate/ Volume Analysis tables on Page 55 and Page 57, 
respectively, for further details. 

The Company's return on average equity improved in 2009 to 13.29% from 2008 at 12.33%. The Company's capital posi
tion was strengthened due to stronger earnings, a lower dividend payout, purchase of Treasury stock and the reduction in 
the accumulated other comprehensive loss. The accumulated other comprehensive loss component, net of tax, related to 
unrealized losses on available-for-sale investment securities changed from a loss of $88 thousand at December 31, 2008 to 
a gain of $359 thousand at December 31, 2009. In addition, the accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax, compo
nent related to the Company's unrealized actuarial loss on the deflned beneflt pension plan decreased from $3.2 million at 
December 31, 2008 to $2.0 million at December 31, 2009. The majority ofthis change relates to the Company's $2.1 million 
contribution to the Plan and the increase in the value of the underlying pension plan investments. 

The Company grew $25.8 million, or 5.6%, in average assets from $406 million in 2008 to $433 million in 2009. The Compa
ny opened two full service branches in St. Albans and Danville, Vermont during the second half of 2008 which has resulted 
in both loan and deposit growth in those markets. Average earning assets grew from $379 million in 2008 to $409 million in 
2009, or 7.8%. Residential loan originations exceeded $78 million in 2009 compared to originations of $41 million in 2008, 
and new commercial loan growth was strong. The Company continued to manage growth and interest rate risk through the 
sale of $60.4 million in long-term flxed-rate residential loans and the participafion of some commercial real estate loans. 
The Company realized $970 thousand in net gains on sales of loans held for sale in 2009 compared to $419 thousand in 
2008 but these gains were parfially offset by higher fees paid to sell loans in the secondary market of $272 thousand in 
2009 compared to $62 thousand in 2008. The historically low Prime Rate throughout 2009 has helped to drive customer 
refinancings and a decrease in the net interest margin to 4.52% for 2009 as compared to 4.74% for 2008. 

Despite the weakening economy, loan demand was strong in 2009, with total loan growth of $4.9 million or 1.4% over 2008, 
netof loan salesof $50.4 million in 2009 compared to loan sales of $23.2 million for 2008. Residential real estate loans grew 
$1.7 million, or 1.3% net of loans sold and commercial real estate loans grew $5.2 million, or 3.4%. Loans in nonaccrual 
status were up between years at $3.7 million at December 31, 2009 versus $2.9 million at December 31, 2008, of which 
$127 thousand was guaranteed by U.S. government agencies at December 31, 2009. Other nonperforming loans decreased 
to $538 thousand at December 31, 2009 from $4.4 million at December 31, 2008, and $116 thousand of those loans at 
December 31, 2009 were covered by guarantees of U.S. government agencies. The rafio of net charge-offs to average loans 
not held for sale was 0.13% for 2009 compared to 0.05% for 2008. The Company's ratio of allowance for loan losses to loans 
not held for sale was 1.00% and 1.02% at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively The ratio of allowance for loan losses 
to nonperforming loans has increased to 81.69% at December 31, 2009 from 48.75% at December 31, 2008. The increase in 
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the 2009 provision to $400 thousand from $335 thousand in 2008 reflects the increased volume of loans, higher net charge 
offs, the general economy and management's assessment of credit quality 

Even though deposits at year end, December 31, 2009 were only up $4.5 million or 1.22%, average deposit growth for the 
year was $26.1 million or 7.9% as the economic turmoil and volafile financial markets over the last eighteen months sent 
deposit dollars back to the safety of FDIC insured depository institufions and the stability of a local community bank. The 
growth in average deposits was $11.1 million or 3.4% in 2008. Interest rates paid on deposits have not dropped as quickly 
as the interest rates earned on loans and these factors combined to reduce the net interest spread 8 basis points from 
4.30% in 2008 to 4.22% in 2009, as the average rate paid on interest bearing liabilities dropped 73 basis points from 2.32% 
to 1.59% from 2008 to 2009, while the average rate earned on interest earning assets dropped 81 basis points from 6.52% 
to 5.81% over the same time frame. The Company increased the average volume in all categories of interest earning as
sets except investment securities available-for-sale, as maturing funds of $6.1 million and funds generated from the sale of 
securities of $4.5 million were utilized to fund loan demand or placed into interest bearing deposits in 2009. The growth in 
deposits and low short-term interest rate Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) of Boston advances were also utilized to support 
the growth in interest-earning assets. 

The Company continues to focus on customer service and its core business of community banking to provide products and 
services to the communities it serves, including the market for its newest branches in Danville and St. Albans, Vermont, and 
to enhance the delivery of products and services by adopting new technologies as appropriate. 

The Company's pension benefit obligations and net periodic benefit cost are actuarially determined annually by an inde
pendent, cerfified actuary. The Company had a prepaid expense of $609 thousand and an unfunded liability for pension 
benefits for its defined benefit pension plan of $3.0 million at December 31, 2009, resulting in a net liability of $2.4 mil
lion. At December 31, 2008, there was an accrued expense of $412 thousand and an unfunded pension liability of $4.8 
million for a total liability of $5.2 million. The main reason for the decrease in the liability between years was attributable 
to the $2.1 million contribution to the plan by the Company in 2009 and the decrease in the unrealized actuarial loss on 
investment assets held at December 31, 2008 from $4.8 million to $3.0 million at December 31, 2009. The 2009 actuarially 
computed net periodic benefit cost expensed in 2009 was $1.1 million compared to $590 thousand in 2008, or an increase 
of 84.1%. A portion ofthe higher expense in 2009 was due to the low asset values at December 31, 2008 resulting from the 
economic turmoil in 2008, parficularly in the fourth quarter. The accounting requirements mandate that all calculations are 
as of the last day of the fiscal year. The Company is hopeful that with the large 2009 contribution and the improved market 
values at December 31, 2009, the 2010 expense will be stabilized at a level lower than the 2009 expense. The Company 
has not yet received the 2010 actuarially computed expense from its pension actuary. See Uability for Pension Benefits on 
Page 71 for further information. 

Another area of significant increased noninterest expense for the Company in 2009 was for FDIC insurance. While the Com
pany's average deposits increased 7.9%, the cost of the insurance increased from $87 thousand in 2008 to $684 thousand 
in 2009, or 686.2%. Also the Company was required to prepay three years of coverage on December 30, 2009, which was 
recorded as a nonearning asset of $1.8 million at year end 2009. 

The regulatory environment of the past few years, including the federal Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the changes dis
cussed in Recent Developments, has placed an extensive burden on small publicly traded companies as there are few sig
nificant differences inthe requirements because of size, complexity of operafions and products, nor is any relief provided to 
banking companies despite the significant regulatory oversight to which the banking industry is already subject from states, 
the FDIC and the Federal Reserve. The additional requirements add to operating costs and divert management somewhat 
from the objectives of growing and strengthening the business. Banks also spend a significant amount of time and dollars 
complying with the US Patriot Act and the Bank Secrecy Act to protect the U.S. financial system and their customers against 
idenfity theft, anti-money laundering, and terrorism. The cost of doing business asa community bank continued to increase 
throughout 2009 and the announced changes for 2010 and beyond, including escalating costs associated with FDIC insur
ance, will exacerbate that trend. 
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The following per share information and key ratios depict several measurements of performance or financial condition for 
or at the years ending December 31, 2009 and 2008, respecfively: 

Return on average assets (ROA) 
Return on average equity (ROE) 
Net interest margin (1) 
Efficiency ratio (2) 
Net interest spread (3) 
Loan to deposit ratio 
Net loan charge-offs to average loans not held for sale 
Allowance for loan losses to loans not held for sale 
Nonperforming assets to total assets 
Equity to assets 
Total capital to risk weighted assets 
Book value per share 
Earnings per share 
Dividends paid pershare 
Dividend payout ratio(4) 

2009 2008 

1.21% 
13.29% 

4.52% 
69.15% 

4.22% 
97.09% 

0.13% 
1.00% 

1.15% 
9.20% 

15.30% 
$9.23 
$1.17 
$1.00 

85.47% 

1.25% 
12.33% 

4.74% 

67.43% 
4.30% 

96.99% 
0.05% 
1.02% 

1.85% 
8.90% 

15.34% 
$8.75 
$1.14 
$1.12 

98.25% 

(1) The ratio of tax equivalent net interest income to average earning assets. 
(2) The ratio of noninterest expense ($16,397,173 in 2009 and $15,349,515 in 2008) to tax equivalent net interest income 

($18,444,525 in 2009 and $18,000,233 in 2008) and noninterest income ($5,521,307 in 2009 and $4,256,489 in 2008) 
excluding securities gains and (losses) ($257,546 in 2009 and ($495,373) in 2008). 

(3) The difference between the average rate earned on earning assets minus the average rate paid on interest bearing 
liabilities. 

(4) Cash dividends declared and paid per share divided by consolidated net income per share. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The Company's net income for the year ended December 31, 2009, was $5.23 million compared with net income of $5.11 
million for the year 2008. Earnings per share increased to $1.17 in 2009 from $1.14 in 2008. Pressure on the net interest 
margin continued due to the prevailing low interest rate environment and unstable economic conditions. Net interest in
come increased $378 thousand, or 2.2%, with a 7.8% growth in average interest earning assets, accounting for a 5C increase 
in earnings per share. The Provision for loan losses increased $55 thousand, or 19.4%, accounfing for a IC decrease in earn
ings per share. Noninterest income increased $1.2 million, or 27.5%, accounting for an 18C increase in earnings per share. 
Non interest expense increased $985 thousand, or 6.4%, accounting for a 15C decrease in earnings per share. Federal 
income tax credits decreased $182 thousand or 30.0% accounfing for a 4C decrease in earnings per share. 

Net Interest Income. The largest component of the Company's operating income is net interest income, which is the differ
ence between interest and dividend income received from interest earning assets and the interest expense paid on interest 
bearing liabilifies. The Company's level of net interest income can fluctuate over fime due to changes in the level and mix 
of interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities and from changes in the yield earned and costs of funds. The Com
pany's net interest income increased $378 thousand, or 2.2%, to $17.92 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 from 
$17.54 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. This increase was due primarily to the decrease in interest expense 
of $1.89 million from $7.18 million in 2008 to $5.29 million in 2009, which was partially offset by the decrease in interest 
income of $1.50 million from $24.72 million in 2008 to $23.22 in 2009. The decrease in 2009 interest income reflected the 
historically low 3.25% prime rate that prevailed throughout the year, as adjustable rate loans repriced at lower rates, exist
ing loans were refinanced and new loans originated at lower rates. The effect of this decrease in yield was parfially offset 
by the growth in average interest earning assets to $408.6 million in 2009 from $379.2 million in 2008. 

On average for the year, 94.3% of assets earned interest in 2009 versus 93.3% in 2008. The net interest spread decreased 
to 4.22% for the year ended December 31, 2009, from 4.30% for the year ended December 31, 2008, reflecting the low 
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interest rate environment. The net interest margin for the 2009 period decreased 22 basis points to 4.52% from 4.74% for 
the 2008 period as the margin was affected by the low interest rate environment and the faster and steeper decrease in the 
repricing of interest earning assets throughout the period. 

Yields Earned and Rates Paid. The following table shows for the periods indicated the total amount of income recorded 
from average interest earning assets, the related average tax equivalent yields, the interest expense associated with aver
age interest bearing liabilities, the related average rates paid, and the resulting tax equivalent net interest spread and mar
gin. Yield and rate information is average informafion for the year, and is calculated by dividing the tax equivalent income 
or expense item for the year by the average balance of the appropriate balance sheet item for that year. Nonaccrual loans 
or investments are included in asset balances for the appropriate periods, but recognifion of interest is discontinued and 
any remaining accrued interest receivable is reversed, in conformity with federal regulations. 

Tax-exempt interest income amounted to $1.2 million and $1.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively The following table presents the effect of tax-exempt income on the calculation of the net interest margin, 
using a marginal tax rate of 34% for 2009 and 2008: 

Year Ended December 31, 

Net interest income as presented 
Effect of tax-exempt interest 

Securities available-for-sale 
Loans 

Net interest income, tax equivalent 

2009 

$17,922 

128 

394 

$18,444 

2008 

$17,544 

135 

321 

$18,000 
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Years ended December 31, 

Average 
Balance 

$ 14,451 
16,372 
24,104 

351,795 
1,922 

408,545 

5,280 
7,485 

11,755 

$433,155 

$ 61,727 

105,372 
138,140 

27,667 

332,906 

52,890 

8,041 

393,837 

39,328 

$433,165 

2009 

Income/ 
Expense 

$ 25 
484 

1,148 
21,559 

23,215 

$ 159 

558 
3,300 
1,177 

5,294 

$17,922 

Average 
Yield/Rate 

Average 
Balance 

Dollars in thousands) 

0.17% $ 7,985 
2.96% 10,541 
5.30% 29,550 
5.24% 329,156 

— 1,827 

5.81% 

0.26% 
0.62% 
2.39% 
4.20% 

1.59% 

4.22% 

4.52% 

379,159 

9,389 
7,133 

10,726 

$405,407 

$ 55,764 

92,738 
131,770 

26,765 

307,037 

51,774 

6,170 

364,981 

41,426 

$406,407 

2008 

Income/ 
Expense 

$ 126 
482 

1,404 
22,646 

63 

24,721 

$ 310 
1,196 
4,497 
1,174 

7,177 

$ 17,544 

Average 
Yield/Rate 

1.55% 
4.51% 
5.21% 
6.96% 
3.40% 

6.62% 

0.55% 
1.29% 
3.40% 
4.32% 

2.32% 

4.30% 

4.74% 

Average Assets 
Federal funds sold and overnight deposits 
Interest bearing deposits in banks 
Investment securities (1), (2) 
Loans, net( l ) , (3) 
FHLB of Boston stock 

Total interest earning assets (1) 

Cash and due from banks 
Premises and equipment 
Other assets 

Total assets 

Average Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 
NOW accounts 
Savings/money market accounts 
Time deposits 
Borrowed funds 

Total interest bearing liabilities 

Noninterest bearing deposits 

Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Stockholders' equity 

Total liabilities and 

Stockholders' equity 

Net interest income 

Net interest spread (1) 

Net interest margin (1) 

(1) Average yields reported on a tax equivalent basis. 
(2) Average balances of investment securities are calculated on the amorfized cost basis. 
(3) Includes loans held for sale as well as non-accrual loans and is net of unearned costs/ income and allowance for loan 

losses. 

Rate/Volume Analysis. The following table describes the extent to which changes in average interest rates and changes in 
volume of average interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities have affected the Company's interest income and 
interest expense during the periods indicated. For each category of interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilifies, 
informafion is provided on changes attributable to: 

• changes in volume (change in volume multiplied by prior rate); 
• changes in rate (change in rate multiplied by prior volume); and 
• total change in rate and volume. 
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Volume Rate 

(Dollars in thousands) 

$ 59 
203 

(282) 
1,460 

3 

$ 1,443 

$ 30 
144 
206 
35 

$ 416 

$ 1,027 

$ (160) 
(201) 

26 
(2,547) 

(56) 

$ (2,948) 

$ (181) 
(682) 

(1,403) 
(33) 

$ (2,299) 

$ (649) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Net 

(101) 
2 

(256) 
(1,087) 

(53) 

(1,505) 

(151) 
(538) 

(1,197) 
3 

(1,883) 

378 

Changes attributable to both rate and volume have been allocated proportionately to the change due to volume and the 
change due to rate. 

Year ended December 31, 2009 
Compared to Year ended 

December 31, 2008 
Increase/ (Decrease) Due to Change In 

Interest earning assets 
Federal funds sold and overnight deposits 
Interest bearing deposits in banks 
Investment securities 
Loans, net 
FHLB of Boston stock 

Total interest earning assets 

Interest bearing liabilities 
NOW accounts 
Savings/money market accounts 
Time deposits 
Borrowed funds 

Total interest bearing liabilities 

Net change in net interest income 

Interest and Dividend Income 2009 versus 2008. The Company's interest and dividend income decreased $1.50 million, or 
6.1%, to $23.22 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 from $24.72 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. 
Average earning assets increased $29.5 million, or 7.8%, from $379.2 million at December 31, 2008 to $408.6 million at 
December 31, 2009. Average loans were $351.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $329.2 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2008, which is an increase of $22.6 million, or 6.9%. The increase in volume in average 
residential and commercial real estate loans as well as municipal and consumer loans was partially offset by the modest 
slowdown in the origination of residential construction and commercial loans. The average yield on the loan portfolio de
creased from 6.96% for the year ended December 31, 2008, to 6.24% for the year ended December 31, 2009, or a decrease 
of 72 basis points, as the prime rate was flat at 3.25% for 2009 versus 2008 where it was 7.25% at the beginning of the year 
and dropped throughout the year reaching 3.25% on December 16, 2008. The steep drop in rates during 2008 and the con
finued low rate environment throughout 2009 resulted in many customers refinancing or new customers receiving loans at 
lower interest rates while at the same fime adjustable rate loans repriced downward. This yield reduction accounted for a 
$2.5 million drop in loan interest income, which was partially offset by an increase of $1.5 million due to increased volume 
resulting in total loan interest income of $21.6 million for 2009 compared to $22.6 million for 2008. 

The average balance of investment securifies (including mortgage-backed securities) decreased $5.5 million, or 18.4%, 
from $29.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 to $24.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The yield 
on the investment portfolio increased from 5,21% for 2008 to 5.30% for 2009 or 9 basis points. The average level of federal 
funds sold and overnight deposits increased $6.5 million or 81.0% from $8.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 
to $14.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The average yield on federal funds sold and overnight deposits 
decreased from 1.55% for 2008 to 0.17% for 2009, or 138 basis points as the Federal Funds target rate set by the Federal 
Open Market Committee of the Federal Reserve dropped to between 0.00% and 0.25% in late 2008 and stayed at that level 
throughout 2009. The average balance of interest bearing deposits in banks increased $5.7 million, or 53.9%, to $16.4 mil
lion for the year ended December 31, 2009 from $10.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. These deposits are 
FDIC insured. The average yield on interest bearing deposits in banks decreased from 4.51% for 2008 to 2.96% for 2009 or 
155 basis points, reflecting the decreasing rate environment during the last two years and the shortness of the duration of 
the portfolio as we anficipate an eventual rise in interest rates. As discussed under the caption "Recent Developments," the 
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FHLB of Boston implemented a quarterly dividend restriction under their 2009 capital plan which impacted the dividends 
received by Union Bank on its Class B common stock investment, which dropped from $53 thousand in 2008 to $0 in 2009. 
Interest income from nonloan instruments decreased $418 thousand or 20.1% between years, with $1.7 million in income 
for 2009 compared to $2.1 million for 2008, reflecting the loss of dividends on FHLB Class B common stock and the overall 
decrease in average yields on all other categories except investment securities. The average volume of nonloan interest 
bearing asset categories increased from $50.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 to $56.8 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2009 but the increased volume was in lower yielding categories. 

Interest Expense 2009 versus 2008. The Company's interest expense decreased $1.88 million, or 25.2%, from $7.18 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2008 to $5.29 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. Interest rates paid in 2009 
decreased for all categories of interest bearing liabilities as interest rates dropped signiflcantly during the last two years. 
Financial institufions competed aggressively for deposits to fund increasing loan demand and grow market share so rates 
paid on deposits did not drop as quickly as other market rates. Average interest bearing liabilities increased $25.9 million, 
or 8.4%, from $307.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 to $332.9 million for the year ended December 31, 
2009. Average NOW accounts increased $5.9 million, or 10.7%, from $55.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 
to $51.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The average balances of savings and money market accounts in
creased $12.7 million, or 13.5%, from $92.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 to $105.4 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2009. Average time deposits increased $6.4 million, or 4.8%, to $138.1 million for 2009 from $131.8 
million for 2008. The market for these deposits was very strong during the last four months of 2008 and the majority of 
2009 due to the uncertainty and turmoil in the financial markets. The interest rates offered by brokerage firms, mutual 
banks, credit unions, nationwide banks and insurance companies as well as some local banks have remained high in rela
tion to other financial instruments available. The average rate paid on interest bearing deposits decreased 97 basis points 
from 2.31% in 2008 to 1.34% in 2009. The average balance of borrowed funds increased $902 thousand, or 3.4%, from 
$26.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, to $27.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The average 
rate paid for borrowed funds decreased from 4.32% for the year ended December 31, 2008 to 4.20% for the year ended 
December 31, 2009. 

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses was increased from $335 thousand in 2008 to $400 thousand in 
2009 due to the increased loan volume in 2009 and management's evaluation of the collectability of the loan portfolio 
through its assessment of credit quality composition and size ofthe loan portfolio, historical loss experience and current 
economic conditions and risks, including the impact ofthe increased loan demand, the real estate market in our region, 
and general economic conditions. Refer to Asset Quality and Allowance for Loan Losses sections below for more in depth 
discussion. 

Noninterest Income. The following table sets forth changes from 2008 to 2009 for the components of noninterest in
come: 

For The Year Ended December 31, 

Trust income 
Service fees 
Net gains on sales of loans held for sale 
Income from Company owned life insurance 

Other 

Subtotal 

Net gains on sales of investment securities 

Write-down of impaired investment securities 

Total noninterest income 

Noninterest income net of gains, losses and write-downs on investment securities available-for-sale was $5.3 million, or 
18.3%, of total income for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $4.8 million, or 16.5%, of total income for the 
year ended December 31, 2008. This increase between years is mainly due to the effect of higher net gains on residential 

2009 

$ 379 
3,500 

959 
77 

238 

5,263 
258 

-
$5,521 

2008 $ V J 

Dollars in thousands) 
$ 378 

3,528 
419 
353 
135 

4,824 
16 

(511) 

$ 4,329 

$ 

iriance 

1 
72 

550 
(285) 
102 

439 
242 
511 

$1,192 

% Variance 

0.3 
2.0 

131.3 
(78.8) 
75.0 

9.1 
1,512.5 

100.0 

27.5 
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real estate loans sold in 2009 which was partially offset by a $242 thousand gain in 2008 on receipt of nontaxable life insur
ance proceeds of $1.0 million. 

Service fees. The increase in service fees for 2009 compared to 2008 was primarily due to the increase in ATM/Debit card 
fees and related interchange income which in total rose from $812 thousand in 2008 to $945 thousand in 2009; the in
crease in service charge income from commercial checking accounts from $95 thousand in 2008 to $137 thousand in 2009 
due to the drop in earnings credits on balances maintained resulfing from the drop in interest rates between years; and 
the $36 thousand increase in foreign exchange fees from $5 thousand in 2008 to $41 thousand in 2009. These increases 
were parfially offset by a drop in overdraft fees from $1.31 million in 2008 to $1.20 million in 2009 as it appears that our 
customers were more fiscally responsible with their account management in 2009. Also, there was a decrease in merchant 
program income from $479 thousand in 2008 to $433 thousand in 2009 due to the drop in merchant transactions mainly 
due to the weakened economy. 

Net gains on sales of loans held for sale. Net gains increased from 2008 to 2009 by $550 thousand, or 131.3%, as total loans 
sold increased 150.0% to $60.4 million in 2009 from $23.2 million in 2008 due in large part to an increase in residential 
mortgage refinancing. 

Income from Company owned life insurance. The Company received a nontaxable death benefit payment totaling $1.0 mil
lion from a life insurance policy. The benefit payment resulted in a nontaxable gain of $242 thousand in 2008 included in 
noninterest income and net income. 

Other The increase between 2009 and 2008 is primarily due to the $159 thousand increasein net mortgage servicing rights 
due to the increase in loans sold during 2009 partially offset by the $57 thousand decrease in income from gas royalties 
and oil leases. 

Net gains on sales of investment securities. Available-for-sale debt securities totaling $4.5 million were sold in 2009 for a 
net gain of $258 thousand compared to available-for-sale debt and equity securities totaling $1.8 million sold in 2008 for 
a net gain of $16 thousand. 

Write-down of impaired investment securities. In September 2008, two corporate bonds in the available-for-sale invest
ment portfolio were determined to be other than temporarily impaired and were written down by $511 thousand ($338 
thousand, net of tax) to reflect the fair value of these securities as of September 30, 2008. Both of these bonds were sold 
in 2009 for a gain. 

Noninterest expense. The following table sets forth changes from 2008 to 2009 for the components of noninterest ex
pense: 

For The Year Ended December 31, 

Salaries and wages 
Pension and employee beneflts 
Occupancy expense, net 
Equipment expense 
Supplies and printing 
Communications 
Postage and shipping 
Professional fees 
Director and advisory board fees 
Advertising 
Vermont franchise tax 
Expenses of other real estate owned, net 
Fees paid to sell loans in secondary market 
FDIC insurance assessment 
Equity in losses of limited partnerships 
Other 

Total noninterest expense 

2009 

(Dolla 
$ 6,097 

2,924 
957 

1,110 
304 
227 
230 
301 
279 
234 
395 
281 
272 
684 
426 

1,675 

$16,397 

2008 $ Variance 

rs in thousands) 
$ 6,433 

2,308 
974 

1,200 
340 
241 
233 
409 
266 
234 
370 
291 
62 
87 
389 

1,575 

$15,412 

$ 

$ 

(336) 
616 
(17) 
(90) 
(36) 
(14) 

(3) 
(108) 
13 
— 
26 
(10) 
210 
597 
37 
100 
985 

% Variance 

(5.2) 
25.7 
(1.7) 
(7.5) 

(10.5) 
(5.8) 
(1.3) 

(25.4) 
4.9 
-
7.0 
(3.4) 

338.7 
585.2 
9.5 
6.3 

6.4 

Union Bankshares, Inc. 2009 Annual Report • Page 59 



Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations (continued) 

Salaries and wages. The salaries and wages decrease in 2009 over 2008 was due primarily to the reduction in bonuses paid 
to employees from 2008 to 2009 of $155 thousand, the outsourcing of statement preparation, mailing and the reduction of 
several positions due to operafing efficiencies and $241 thousand of deferred loan originafion costs in 2009 while in prior 
years these costs had been recognized as a reducfion of origination fees charged which were included in Interest and fees 
on loans. These decreases were partially offset by regular salary activity wellness incentives, and the increase in staffing for 
the new St. Albans and Danville branches opened in the third quarter of 2008. 

Pension and employee benefits. The majority of the increase was due to the $495 thousand increase from $590 thousand 
for 2008 to $1.1 million for 2009 in the cost of the defined benefit pension plan, which represents the actuarily computed 
pension expense for the next year determined as of the last day of the current calendar year. The calculafion is partially 
based on the fair value of the plan assets compared to the beneflt obligations and the pension plan asset values were af
fected in the fourth quarter of 2008 due to the worldwide financial markets turmoil. The other large factor between years 
was a change from a partially self insured health plan to a fully insured health plan which increased the cost by $129 thou
sand from $882 thousand for 2008 to $1.0 million for 2009. 

Equipment expense. The decrease in equipment expense for 2009 versus 2008 was primarily due to decreased deprecia
tion expense. 

Professional fees. Professional fees decreased between years due to the nonrecurrance of 2008 costs for consulting ser
vices regarding the Company's salary and benefit packages and professional assistance in preparing and reviewing the 
Company's readiness for compliance with the final requirements ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act. 

Fees paid to sell loans in secondary markets. The volume of loans sold increased significantly from $23.2 million in 2008 to 
$50.4 million in 2009, which parfially accounts for the increase in fees paid, but most of the increased loan fee expense is 
due to newer and much higher fees imposed by The Federal Home Loan Mortgage Associafion (Freddie Mac) in 2009. 

FDIC Insurance Assessment. A portion of the increase between 2008 and 2009 is due to the growth in deposits, a small 
portion is due to the insurance on all noninterest bearing deposits that started in November of 2008 but the majority of 
the increase was due to the special assessment of $191 thousand and the overall increase in assessment rates charged by 
the FDIC for coverage throughout 2009. 

Equity in losses of limited partnerships. These expenses increased in 2009 from 2008 due to new investments in affordable 
housing projects. The Company receives income tax credits from these investments as well as a reduction in income tax 
expense from the equity in losses. These investments also assist the Company in fulfilling its obligations under the federal 
Community Reinvestment Act of 1977. 

Other expenses. The increase between 2008 and 2009 is mainly due to an accrual for a proposed settlement with various 
parties on a property with environmental concerns. 

Income Tax Expense. The Company has provided for current and estimated deferred federal income taxes for the current 
and all prior periods presented. The Company's provision for income taxes increased to $1.42 million for 2009 from $1.02 
million for 2008. This is mainly the result of the increase in federal income taxes from increased taxable income and lower 
federal tax credits from investments in affordable housing limited partnerships. The federal tax credits totaled $425 thou
sand in 2009 versus $507 thousand in 2008, which included $195 thousand in rehabilitation tax credits relating to invest
ments as the Company invested in three affordable housing limited partnerships in late 2007. The Company's effective tax 
rate for 2009 was 21.4% compared to 16.6% for 2008. The change resulted from higher taxable income in 2009, receipt of 
a nontaxable life insurance death benefit in 2008 and the 2008 rehabilitation federal tax credit due to 2007 investments in 
affordable housing projects. 

FINANCIAL CONDITION 

At December 31, 2009, the Company had total consolidated assets of $447.5 million, including gross loans and loans held 
for sale ("total loans") of $358.1 million, deposits of $358.8 million and stockholders' equity of $41.2 million. Based on the 

Page 60 • Union Bankshares, Inc. 2009 Annual Report 



Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations (continued) 

most recent information published by the Vermont Banking Commissioner, in terms oftotal assets at December 31, 2008, 
Union Bank ranked asthe sixth largest institution ofthe sixteen commercial banks and savings insfitufions headquartered 
in Vermont. The largest of these institutions has since been sold to an out-of-state financial insfitution. 

The Company's total assets increased by $7.3 million, or 1.7%, to $447.5 million at December 31, 2009 from $440.1 mil
lion at December 31, 2008. Total net loans and loans held for sale increased by $4.9 million, or 1.4%, to $354.7 million, 
representing 79.3% of total assets at December 31, 2009 as compared to $349.8 million, or 79.5%, of total assets at 
December 31, 2008. The increase in 2009 resulted mainly from growth of $5.3 million in commercial real estate loans and 
growth of $5.1 million in real estate loans held for sale. These increases were offset in part by a decrease of $3.2 million in 
commercial loans. Loan demand was strong during the year but growth of the loan portfolio was moderated significantly by 
management's decision to continue to sell the majority of qualified lower rate residential loans into the secondary market 
during 2009 to mitigate future interest rate risk and to participate out some commercial real estate loans to mitigate the 
level of credit and interest rate risk. 

Cash and due from banks increased slightly from $4.8 million at December 31, 2008 to $4.9 million at December 31, 
2009. Federal funds sold and overnight deposits decreased $4.3 million to $17.2 million at December 31, 2009 from 
$21.5 million at December 31, 2008. Interest bearing deposits in banks grew $8.2 million, or 55.3%, from $14.8 million at 
December 31, 2008 to $23.0 million at December 31, 2009 as this was one of the safest and most profitable investments 
during 2009 which provided the Company a spread over federal funds sold rates while maintaining a relatively short-
term maturity ladder Investment securities available-for-sale decreased $3.2 million, or 11.5%, from $27.8 million at 
December 31, 2008 to $24.6 million at December 31, 2009. The decrease was due to the investment of maturing dollars 
into FDIC insured certificates of deposit and to fund loan demand. There was also an increase in the unrealized holding gain 
on Investment securities available-for-sale of $678 thousand from a loss of $134 thousand at December 31, 2008 to a gain 
of $544 thousand at December 31, 2009. Total nonloan interest bearing assets remained relatively stable at 14.9% of total 
assets at December 31, 2009 compared to 15.0% at December 31, 2008. 

Other assets grew $1.8 million, or 15.4%, between years primarily due to the prepayment on December 30, 2009 of the 
$1.8 million estimated FDIC insurance assessment for 2010, 2011 and 2012 as required of all FDIC insured financial institu
tions. 

Total deposits increased $4.5 million, or 1.2%, to $368.8 million at December 31, 2009 from $364.4 million at 
December 31, 2008. Noninterest bearing deposits decreased 1.9%, or $1.2 million, from $51.3 million at December 31, 
2008 to $60.1 million at December 31, 2009. Interest bearing deposits increased 1.9%, or $5.6 million, from $303.1 million 
to $308.7 million during the same time frame. It appears that the continuing flnancial and credit market turmoil and the 
increased FDIC insurance coverage has made it easier to attract and retain deposits as on average for 2009 deposits grew 
$26.1 million, or 7.9%. However, the long-term outlook for bank deposit gathering is unclear as now even some govern
ment sponsored agencies are being allowed to offer deposit accounts to consumers directly in order to collect deposits to 
fund their lending and investment activities. 

Borrowed funds from the FHLB of Boston increased $3.5 million, or 13.0%, to $31.0 million at December 31, 2009 from 
$27.4 million at December 31, 2008 as Union Bank took advantage of low advance rates late in 2009 to lock in short-term 
funding liquidity. 

Total stockholders' equity increased by $2.0 million, or 5.2%, to $41.2 million at December 31, 2009 from $39.2 million 
at December 31, 2008. This increase reflected the combined effect of an increase from net income of $5.2 million, a $12 
thousand increase due to stock based compensation, and a decrease of $448 thousand inthe net unrealized holding loss on 
investment securities available-for-sale component, a decrease of $1.6 million in the net unfunded defined benefit pension 
liability component, cash dividend payments of $4.6 million and the purchase of treasury stock for $224 thousand. 

Loan Portfolio. The Company's loan portfolio (including loans held for sale) primarily consists of adjustable- and fixed-
rate mortgage loans secured by one-to-four family, multifamily or commercial real estate. As of December 31, 2009, 
the gross loan portfolio totaled $358.1 million, or 80.0%, of assets compared to $353.4 million, or 80.3%, of assets as of 
December 31, 2008. Total loans have increased $4.7 million, or 1.3%, since December 31, 2008, despite the sale of $60.4 
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million of loans held for sale during 2009, resulting in a gain on sale of loans of $969 thousand. Sales of loans in 2008 totaled 
$23.2 million for a gain of $419 thousand. Management expects to continue to sell and/ or participate loans to manage 
interest rate risk, credit exposure or liquidity needs in the future, especially in light ofthe current low interest rate envi
ronment. While competition for good loans is strong, the Company has been able to originate loans to both current and 
new customers while maintaining credit quality. Management expects the loan refinancing trend to slow over the coming 
months as the number of borrowers able to refinance lessens and/ or interest rates rise. 

The composition of the Company's total loan portfolio at year-end for each of the last five years was as follows: 

Year Ended, December 31, 

Residential real estate 
Construction real estate 
Commercial real estate 
Commercial 
Consumer and other 
Municipal 
Loans held for sale 

Total loans 

2009 

$ 

123,915 
19,391 

159,095 
15,597 
6,967 

23,862 
9,262 

358,089 

% 

34,6 
5.4 

44.4 
4,4 
1.9 
6.7 
2.5 

100.0 

2008 

$ 

128,292 
19,038 

153,821 
18,833 
6,735 

23,519 
3,178 

353,416 

% 

36.3 
5.4 

43.5 
5.3 
1.9 
5.7 
0.9 

100.0 

2007 

$ % 

2006 

$ 
(Dollars in thousands) 

115,303 35.2 
20,190 6.4 

134,558 42.3 
19,537 6.1 
7,175 2.3 

13,731 4.3 
7,711 2.4 

318,305 100.0 

114,139 
22,568 

132,186 
19,253 
7,717 

17,959 
3,750 

317,572 

% 

35.9 
7.1 

41.5 
6.1 
2.4 
5.7 
1.2 

100.0 

2005 

$ 

105,470 
18,066 

130,483 
20,550 
7,999 

17,009 
6,546 

307,223 

% 

34.7 
5.9 

42.5 
6.7 
2.5 
5.5 
2.1 

100.0 

For residential loans, the Company generally does not lend more than 80% of the appraised value of the home without a 
government guaranty or the borrower purchasing private mortgage insurance and does not lend more than 100% of the 
appraised value under any circumstances. The Company lends up to 80% of the collateral value on commercial real estate 
loans to strong borrowers. The majority of commercial real estate loans do not exceed 75% of the appraised collateral val
ue. However, the loan to value may go up to 90% on loans with government guarantees or other mitigating circumstances. 
Vermont has not experienced the steep decline in property values that have been prevalent in other areas of the country 
but the market to sell properties remains slow given the impact of the decline in the flnancial markets and the uncertainty 
of the current economic environment. Real estate secured loans represented $311.7 million, or 87.0%, oftotal loans at 
December 31, 2009 compared to $304.3 million, or 85.1%, oftotal loans at December 31, 2008. 

The Company does not make loans that are interest only, have teaser rates or that result in negative amortization of the 
principal, except for construction and other short-term loans for either commercial or consumer purposes where the credit 
risk is evaluated on a borrower by borrower basis. The Company evaluates the borrower's ability to pay on variable-rate 
loans over a variety of interest rate scenarios, not just the current rate. 

The Company originates and sells residential mortgages into the secondary market, with most ofthe sales made to Fred
die Mac and occasionally to the Vermont Housing Finance Agency (VHFA). In 2008, the Company entered into a contract 
with the FHLB of Boston Mortgage Partnership Finance Program (MPF) to sell up to $5 million in loans. This contract was 
completed in early 2009 anda second $5 million contract was executed for future sales but has not yet been utilized. These 
loans are classified as held for sale at the time of origination or when a decision is made to sell the loans. Loans held for 
sale are accounted for atthe lowerof cost or fair value and reviewed at least quarterly based on current market pricing. The 
Company serviced a residential real estate mortgage portfolio of $229.1 million and $227.3 million at December 31, 2009 
and 2008, respectively Of that portfolio, $96.4 million at both December 31, 2009 and 2008 was serviced for unaffiliated 
third parties. Additionally, the Company originates commercial real estate and commercial loans under various Small Busi
ness Administration (SBA), U.S. Department of Agriculture Rural Development Authority (USDA) and Vermont Economic 
Development Authority (VEDA) programs that provide an agency guarantee for a portion ofthe loan amount. The Company 
occasionally sells the guaranteed portion of the loan to other financial concerns and will retain servicing rights, which 
generates fee income. These loans are classified as held for sale as they are idenfified and accounted for at the lower of 
cost or fair value and priced at least quarterly by an independent party. The Company serviced approximately $3.0 million 
of commercial and commercial real estate loans for unaffiliated third parfies as of December 31, 2009 and $4.3 million at 
December 31, 2008. 
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The Company capitalizes its loan servicing rights on these loans and recognizes gains and losses on the sale ofthe principal 
porfion of these notes as they occur The unamortized balance of servicing rights on loans sold with servicing retained was 
$530 thousand as of December 31, 2009 and $329 thousand as of December 31, 2008, with an estimated market value in 
excess of their carrying value at both year ends. Management periodically evaluates and measures the servicing assets for 
impairment. 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company occasionally sells participations in a portion of commercial, munici
pal or real estate loans to other financial institutions on a nonrecourse basis for liquidity or credit concentration man
agement purposes. The total of loans participated out as of December 31, 2009 was $16.2 million and $13.5 million at 
December 31, 2008. 

The majority of the Company's loan portfolio is secured by real estate located throughout the Company's primary market 
area of northern Vermont and northwestern New Hampshire. Underiying real estate values for both residential and com
mercial loans have decreased slightly in the Company's market area during the last year, though a quick sale may result in 
a steeper discount should such a sale of real estate collateral become necessary Although the Company's loan portfolio 
consists of different segments, there is a porfion ofthe loan portfolio centered in tourism related loans. The Company has 
implemented risk management strategies to mifigate exposure in this industry through utilizing government guaranty pro
grams as well as participations with other financial institutions as discussed above. Additionally, the loan portfolio contains 
many loans to seasoned and well established businesses and/or well secured loans which further reduce the Company's 
risk. Management closely follows the local and national economies and their impact on the local economy especially on 
the tourism industry as part of the Company's risk management program. 

The following table breaks down by classification the contractual maturities ofthe gross loans held in portfolio and for sale 
as of December 31, 2009: 

Within 1 
Year 

$ 648 
2,294 

2,933 
12,017 

248 
14,055 

1,597 

3,246 

12,380 

— 

2,334 
77 

$51,829 

2-5 
Years 

(Dollars in thousands) 

$ 3,882 
2,126 

128 
428 

6,699 
10,065 

4,214 

3,913 

1,224 

— 

4,091 
6 

$36,776 

Ove r s 
Years 

$ 43,066 
83,787 

3,591 

301 

8,987 
116,409 

696 
1,931 

2,628 
7,630 

417 
41 

$ 269,484 

Residential real estate 
Fixed-rate 
Variable-rate 

Construction real estate 
Fixed-rate 
Variable-rate 

Commercial real estate 
Fixed-rate 
Variable-rate 

Commercial 
Fixed-rate 
Variable-rate 

Municipal 
Fixed-rate 
Variable-rate 

Consumer & Other 
Fixed-rate 
Variable-rate 

Total 

Asset Quality. The Company, like all financial insfitutions, is exposed to certain credit risks including those related to the 
value of the collateral that secures its loans and the ability of borrowers to repay their loans. Management closely moni
tors the Company's loan and investment portfolios and other real estate owned for potential problems and reports to 
the Company's and the subsidiary's Boards of Directors at regularly scheduled meetings. Repossessed assets and loans 
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